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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

ITREBEREEETWR DN

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015
together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s
audit committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$192,489,000,
representing an increase of HK$35,549,000 or
22.7% from HK$156,940,000 for the year 2014.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
HK$31,086,000 (2014: loss of HK$2,541,000). The
gain was mainly attributable to the gain on fair
value changes of investments held for trading of
approximately HK$40 million.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2015 was HK$2.757 (2014: restated
basic loss per share of HK$2.300).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014: nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally
engaged in garment sourcing and export
businesses, property investment, property
development, investment in~securities and| loan
financing.
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Qhairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEEBNARE DT

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, the turnover from garment
sourcing and export businesses was mainly
derived from customers in the United States
(“US”). Rental income from the investment
properties were derived from properties located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).

(i)

(i)

Garment Sourcing and Export Businesses

For the year ended 31 March 2015,
this segment recorded a turnover of
HK$172,082,000 (2014: HK$142,138,000)
representing 21.1% increase comparing
with year 2014. Cost of sales for the year
amounted to HK$155,172,000 (2014:
HK$126,790,000). The loss of HK$3,660,000
(2014: HK$4,908,000) was mainly due to the
increasing sourcing and labour costs.

Property Investment

Turnover from the property investment
segment increased by 38.3% to
HK$19,256,000 for the year ended 31
March 2015 (2014: HK$13,927,000) of which
HK$11,484,000 and HK$7,772,000 were
generated from the properties in Hong Kong
and the PRC respectively. The increase
in turnover is primarily attributed to the
completion of construction of investment
properties in Huzhou, the PRC, the addition
of the investment properties, the effect of
tenancy renewal, periodic rental adjustments
under the clauses of the existing tenancy
agreements and new tenants.
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On 30 April 2014, Main Lucky Enterprises
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire a property situated at
the ground floor, No. 15 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$236,800,000. This transaction was
approved by the shareholders in the special
general meeting held on 18 June 2014 and the
completion of sale and purchase took place
on 20 August 2014.

The Group has 8 blocks of factory premises
and 4 blocks of dormitories with a total gross
floor areas of approximately 89,229 sqg.m. in
Huzhou, PRC.

(iii) Property Development

On 5 September 2014, the Company and
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement in relation
to the sale and purchase of the sale share
of Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited (as
supplemented by an agreement entered into
on 15 September 2014 by the Company and
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited, whereby
the Company will indirectly acquire the site
located at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong and
the sale loan at a consideration of HK$340
million). This transaction was approved by
the independent shareholders in the special
general meeting held on 20 October 2014 and
the completion of sale and purchase took
place on 21 November 2014.

Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FERENEEEBNWR I
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On 30 October 2014, Land Bloom Holdings
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into five provisional sale
and purchase agreements with independent
third parties to acquire the 8 properties
situated at No. 18 and 20 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at an
aggregate consideration and other related
expenses of HK$169,500,000. This transaction
was approved by the shareholders in the
special general meeting held on 12 January
2015 and the completion of sale and purchase
took place on 15 January 2015.

The Group planned to redevelop No. 14,
16, 18 and 20 Inverness Road, Kowloon
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Inverness
Road Project”). The general building plan to
redevelop the Inverness Road Project has
been submitted to Buildings Department in
January 2015. The demolition works at No. 14
and 16 Inverness Road has been completed
and the demolition works at No. 18 and 20
Inverness Road has also commenced in May
2015.

On 18 March 2015, Chancemore Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into ten provisional sale and purchase
agreements with independent third parties to
acquire ten property units situated at 1st floor,
2nd floor, 3rd floor, 4th floor; 5th floor and
the roof of No. 11 and 13 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong at an aggregate
consideration and the related expenses
of HK$183,000,000. This transaction was
approved by the shareholders in the special
general meeting held on 11 May 2015 and the
completion of sale and purchasé took place
on 17 June 2015.

Qhairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEEBNARE DT
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREBEENWED N )

(iv) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
equity securities in Hong Kong with available-
for-sale investments and investments held
for trading. For the year ended 31 March
2015, this segment has recorded a gain of
HK$43,853,000 (2014: loss of HK$1,738,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2015, total assets of the
Group amounted to HK$1,919,181,000 (2014:
HK$1,389,502,000). In terms of financial resources
as at 31 March 2015, the Group’s total bank
balances and cash was HK$204,234,000 (2014:
HK$589,458,000), of which, approximately RMB52
million (equivalent to approximately HK$64 million)
was tied up in the PRC as investment capital.

As at 31 March 2015, our capital base has been
strengthened as a result of an aggregate net
proceeds of approximately HK$357,600,000
raised through the completion of 2 placings of
new shares of approximately HK$22,500,000
and approximately HK$23,100,000 on 18 June
2014 and 22 August 2014 respectively; and
by the completion of issuing rights shares of
approximately HK$312,000,000 on 14 November
2014. As at the date of this report, our capital
case has been further strengthened as a results of
a net proceeds of approximately HK$326,000,000
raised through the completion of issuing rights
shares on 22 April 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENRR D@

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has total
bank borrowings of HK$293,925,000 (2014:
HK$161,902,000). The Group’s gearing ratio,
which is calculated as a ratio of total bank
borrowings to shareholders’ equity was
approximately 0.19 (2014: 0.14). As at 31 March
2015, the Group’s current ratio was 5.4 (2014:
19.7).

The Group financed its operation primarily with
recurring cash flow generated from its operation,
proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing.

Capital Reorganisation
The First Capital Reorganisation

On 5 September 2014, the Company announced
the Board proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation (the “First Capital Reorganisation”)
involving:

(@) share consolidation: that every ten issued and
unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01 each
be consolidated into one consolidated share
of par value HK$0.10 each;

(b) capital reduction: that (i) the issued share
capital of the Company be reduced by the
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each
of the then issued consolidated shares
such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share be reduced from HK$0.10
to HK$0.01; (ii) the authorised share capital
of the Company be reduced by reducing the
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENWR D@

par value of all consolidated shares in the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in
the reduction of the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 consolidated shares to
HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
adjusted shares of par value HK$0.01 each;
and (iii) the credit arising from the reduction
of the issued share capital of the Company
be transferred to the Company’s contributed
surplus account; and

(c) authorised capital increase: that the
authorised share capital of the Company
be increased from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
adjusted shares.

Shareholders’ approval for the First Capital
Reorganisation has been obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 20
October 2014 and the First Capital Reorganisation
became effective on 21 October 2014. Further
details of the First Capital Reorganisation are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 26 September
2014.

The Second Capital Reorganisation

On 2 February 2015, the Company announced
the Board proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation (the “Second Capital
Reorganisation”) involving:

(@) share consolidation: that every twenty issued
and unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01
each be consolidated into one consolidated
share of par value HK$0.20 each;
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENRR D@

(b) capital reduction: that (i) the issued share
capital of the Company be reduced by the
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.19 on each
of the then issued consolidated shares
such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share be reduced from HK$0.20
to HK$0.01; (ii) the authorised share capital
of the Company be reduced by reducing the
par value of all consolidated shares in the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.20 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in
the reduction of the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 consolidated shares to
HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
adjusted shares of par value HK$0.01 each;
and (iii) the credit arising from the reduction
of the issued share capital of the Company
be transferred to the Company’s contributed
surplus account; and

(c) authorised capital increase: that the
authorised share capital of the Company
be increased from HK$10,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 adjusted shares to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
adjusted shares.

Shareholders’ approval for the Second Capital
Reorganisation has been obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 24 March
2015 and the Second Capital Reorganisation
became effective on 25 March 2015. Further
details of the Second Capital Reorganisation are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 2 March
2015.
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Qhairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FERENEEEBNWR I

Fund Raising

(1)

(i)

On 6 June 2014, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed
to allot and issue, and the placing agent has
agreed to place 65,200,000 placing shares to
independent investors at a placing price of
HK$0.35 per share.

The placing was completed on 18 June 2014
and the entire 65,200,000 placing shares
have been successfully placed. The aggregate
net proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$22,500,000 and intended to be utilised as
the general working capital. As at the date of
this report, the same has been fully deployed
as general working capital.

On 11 August 2014, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed
to allot and issue, and the placing agent has
agreed to place 78,000,000 placing shares to
independent investors at a placing price of
HK$0.30 per share.

The placing was completed on 22 August
2014 and the entire 78,000,000 placing shares
have been successfully placed. The aggregate
net proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$23,100,000 and intended to be utilised as
the general working capital. As at the date of
this report, the same has been fully deployed
as general working capital.

5%

(i)

(if)
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Qhairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEEBNARE DT

(iii) On 5 September 2014, the Board proposed, (i) X20146F9A5H EE&&E3

upon completion of the First Capital
Reorganisation, to raise a net proceeds of
approximately HK$312,000,000 by way of the
rights issue of 450,132,472 rights shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.70 per rights share
on the basis of eight rights shares for every
one adjusted share held on the record date
(the “First Rights Issue”).

Independent shareholders’ approval for the
First Rights Issue has been obtained at the
special general meeting of the Company held
on 20 October 2014 and the First Rights Issue
has become unconditional on 14 November
2014. The dealings of fully paid rights shares
has been commenced on 20 November 2014.
Further details of the First Rights Issue are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 27
October 2014.

The net proceeds of the First Rights Issue of
approximately HK$310 million has been fully
utilized for the acquisition of No. 14 and 16
Inverness Road.

(iv) On 2 February 2015, the Board proposed,

upon completion of the Second Capital
Reorganisation, to raise a net proceeds of
approximately HK$326,000,000 by way of the
rights issue of 506,399,020 rights shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.65 per rights share
on the basis of twenty rights shares for every
one adjusted share held on the record date
(the “Second Rights Issue”).

RE—XBRANEHLTKE  FB
RERERIRD0.708 T2 RE
{8 1 I% 3% 17 450,132,472 f% it %
B 1p - # A & & 49312,000,000
BLZAIEREFE EER
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@%%ﬁésﬂifﬁﬁiﬁiﬁqﬁ—wﬁ
A1) e

ANATEN2014FE10 8200 £
TZRREIASNEE KR
TLETE —RER 2 E - ME
—REHIRER20145E11 A14H
XA AR o SR IR A IR AR
2 MN2014F11 A20EB A 14 B
E-BHE-—RERCE—TF
BENRAAABEA2014F10
AT Az HiRER -

E-RERATEREFELY
310,000,000 % T & & 20 B 1E Uk
BB LTE14 21658 o

(iv) R2015F2A2H  EE2@2&
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREBEENWED N )

Independent shareholders’ approval for the
Second Rights Issue has been obtained at
the special general meeting of the Company
held on 24 March 2015 and the Second Rights
Issue has become unconditional on 22 April
2015. The dealings of fully paid rights shares
has been commenced on 27 April 2015.
Further details of the Second Rights Issue are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 1
April 2015.

The net proceeds of the Second Rights
Issue is approximately HK$326 million, of
which approximately HK$260 million are
intended to be used for the redevelopment
of Inverness Road Project and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$66 million for
general corporate purposes. As at the date
of this report, approximately HK$242,000 has
been utilised in Inverness Road Project and
HK$66,000,000 has been utilized as general
corporate purposes.

As at 31 March 2015, the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company was 25,319,951
shares (2014: 296,595,900 shares).

Details of 2014 Convertible Note

On 3 April 2014 and 29 August 2014, the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible note
(the “2014 Convertible Note”) have been partially
exercised for HK$20,000,000 and HK$60,000,000
respectively, and a total of 122,869,707
conversion shares were issued upon conversion.

ARQAB 2 R2015FE3 240 £
TZBRRENASREE KR
METEZ_AHRZIE ME
ZRE IR P R2015F 4 22 H
B A AR o 88 BR FA AR iR
MmEN2015FE4A27BHB E
B ABEFE _NERE—FFF
BHNALRIBEA2015F4 A
1HZH®RER -

BE_AREBRIEREFEY
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260,000,000 /% 7T #& F 1E & X 12
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66,000,000 8 T A{E— %
we NATRE HH - 4242,000
BITERAREXELTEIER @
% 66,000,000 8 0 & B{E— /&
£R#® o

MR2015E3 8310 ARTE 2T
TR K 428 A25,319,951 %
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2014 F AR EBFHE
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B EE([2014F 0 HRKRERE )
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Bl £20,000,000% JT & 60,000,000
BT R %A 122,869,707 Ik
AR BT -
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENRR D@

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms
and conditions of the 2014 Convertible Note, (i)
adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of the 2014 Convertible Note from HK$0.68
per share to HK$0.66 per share with effect from
18 June 2014 as a result of the completion of
the placing of 65,200,000 placing shares on 18
June 2014; (ii) further adjustment has been made
to the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible
Note from HK$0.66 per share to HK$0.642 per
share with effect from 22 August 2014 as a result
of the completion of the placing of 78,000,000
placing shares on 22 August 2014; (iii) further
adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of the 2014 Convertible Note from HK$0.642
per share to HK$2.498 per share with effect from
25 October 2014 as a result of the First Capital
Reorganisation and the First Rights Issue; and
(iv) further adjustment has been made to the
conversion price of the 2014 Convertible Note
from HK$2.498 per share to HK$10.65 per share
with effect from 31 March 2015 as a result of the
Second Capital Reorganisation and the Second
Rights Issue.

BIE2014 F Al IR R ITK 2 &5 K A&
TRz BB (()BRR2014F
6 A 18 H =% X & & 65,200,000 A% f
ERH2014F TR BE 2 1
EEE&HXHXT“0.68/%7%‘%%@3#&
B 15 0.6678 7T+ B2014F6 H18H
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENWR D@

Particulars of the 2014 Convertible Note are
summarized as follows:

Holder of the 2014 Convertible Note
2014 FAI B EBIFE A

Outstanding principal amount as at the date of
this report

RAFEBHM REERNSH

Issue date
%17HH

Maturity date
2 E

Conversion price as at the date of this report

RASRE BH 2 LR E

Goodco Development Limited was interested in
173,229,147 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 32.58% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.
1,877,934 shares shall be issued by the Company
to Goodco Development Limited upon conversion
of the 2014 Convertible Note in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 in full at the
prevailing conversion price of HK$10.65 per share.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank
loans amounting to HK$293,925,000 (2014:
HK$161,902,000) which were secured by the
investment properties and properties held for
development for sale of the Group with an
aggregate net book value of HK$713,027,000
(2014: HK$372,000,000).

2014 F O] R EBFBHM T -

Goodco Development Limited

ERERERAA
HK$20,000,000
20,000,000 % 7T

27 March 2014
2014F3 A 27 H

27 March 2019
20193 A 27 H

HK$10.65 (subject to adjustment)
10.65 &L (A] FEAE)

ExERABERDAANAAD A
173,229, 147D P B %=+ 18
%EM’MW%M&%E%E%WM
#4132.58% ° B N & #3820 ooo,ooo
;aﬁ22014¢mﬁﬂxﬂ5 RE A
} % KRAIBKRET mﬁﬁﬁtw&
710.65 5 7T % 171,877,934 I% A% 15
%%%%Eﬁ@@ﬂ

EERA

R2015%E3A31 0 KNEE ZRTT
& & /293,925,000 7T (2014 F
161,902,000/%7E))3LA$’§I@E@
% {8 /713,027,000 71 (2014 4 -
372,000,000 87T ) 2 % EWE M FHE
HEEEMEERER -
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENRR D@

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 5 September 2014, the Company and Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the sale and purchase
of the sale share of Kingbest Capital Holdings
Limited (as supplemented by an agreement
entered into on 15 September 2014 by the
Company and Easyknit Properties Holdings
Limited, whereby the Company will indirectly
acquire the site located at No. 14 and 16
Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong and the sale loan at a consideration of
HK$340 million). The independent shareholders’
approval of the resolution relating to the
acquisition has been obtained in the special
general meeting of the Company held on 20
October 2014 and the acquisition has been
completed on 21 November 2014. Upon the
completion, Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited
becomes a directly held wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
or associated companies for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates and
thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The directors considered the risk
of exposure to the currency fluctuation to be
minimal.

BRUBREE

R2014F9A5H » AR A &k
BEREEEBERA TZzﬁﬁ%A
Easyknlt Properties Holdings Limite
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREBEENWED N )

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2015 (2014: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

During the year under review, the Group spent
approximately HK$183,000 (2014: HK$551,000) on
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and spent approximately HK$291,619,000 (2014:
HK$28,410,000) on addition of investment
properties.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of HK$764,000
(2014: HK$14,311,000).

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties
During the year under review, the loss on
changes in fair value of investment properties was
HK$8,155,000 (2014: loss of HK$660,000).
Finance Costs

Finance costs was HK$6,541,000, increased

by HK$1,964,000 or 42.9% for the year from
HK$4,577,000 in 2014.

HAREE

R2015FE3A31H » REE W &
M EBEASABE(20144F  £) o
EXRBIREREIE

REIBFEA AEEDEH%183,000 5
7t(2014 F : 551,000 78 T) BB B -
B M WEA4291,619,000
% 7T (2014 4 : 28,410,000/ 7T ) R
WEREYE o

MR2015F3A31H  NEEDEH
BRBE 2 BRNERXHERNEE A
764,000 T (2014 4 : 14,311,000
BT e

REVEZ2 DT ESH

REBERN REVWEZAFEE
B &4 2 518 4 8,155,000/5 7t.(2014
F : [E548660,00078T) ©

BE A
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FREHREREBEEBSR/RRE DT &)

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 39
employees (2014: 38). Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$15,982,000 for the year under review
(2014: HK$15,107,000). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The
Group has set out the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Hong Kong’s employees and
has made contributions to the state-sponsored
pension scheme operated by the PRC government
for the PRC employees. The Group has a share
option scheme to motivate valued employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

() On 26 May 2015, Cherry Sky Investments
Limited (“Cherry Sky”), as lender, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a facility letter with the borrower, pursuant
to which Cherry Sky has conditionally
agreed to lend an interest bearing loan upto
HK$70,000,000 (the “Loan”) to the borrower
for a period of 12 months from the drawdown
date. The Loan is secured by a share charge
and personal guarantee. The Loan is used
by the borrower exclusively for repayment of
its certain indebtedness and the balance for
lending to the guarantor.

EE
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENWR D@

(i) On 12 June 2015, the Company completed
the issue of a 2% coupon rate convertible
note (the “2015 Convertible Note”) in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000
with the maturity date on 12 June 2017
to an independent third party. The 2015
Convertible Note is convertible into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time within a
period of 2 years following the date of issue
at the initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per
conversion share (subject to adjustment). The
net proceeds of approximately HK$85,900,000
raised from the issue of the 2015 Convertible
Note is intended to be applied for general
working capital of the Group.

PROSPECTS

The US is showing signs of recovery. And
the GDP growth target of China in 2015 is at
a slower but intended higher quality growth,
which is at 7%. But the changing expectation
on possible rate hikes in the US as well as
ongoing search for a consensus solution on
sovereign debt crisis creating crisis of confidence
results in uncertainties in the macro-economic
environments. Nevertheless, the loose monetary
policies adopted by China, Japan and Euro-zone
can help stabilize the global economy.

Persistent property cooling measures continuously
affects the local property market. Last year, home
sales activities has heated up upon the further
adjustments to the doubled stamp duty measures
made by the government. But tightening measures
on the mortgage requirements has been launched
in February 2015 in order to curb the home
prices. The market expects that there will be short
term impacts on the small-to-medium end of the
secondary residential property market.while the
new home sector will not be affected. ThelGroup
remains confidéent and optimistic towards the
property market.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEBREREEENRR D@

For the Matheson Street project, the Company
shall consider to acquire the property located
at the ground floor of No. 11 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong by commencing the
negotiations with the owner at the time when the
Directors think fit. For the Inverness Road Project,
the redevelopment works has commenced. It
was expected that the site will be developed as
residential properties in about 4 years.

The garment industry is still situated at a
disadvantaged competitive position because
of the rising prices of raw materials and the
growing domestic labor costs. During the last
year, the Group successfully raised its turnover
with its major customers, but the cost of sales
still remained at a relatively high level. The Group
would use its best endeavours to strengthen
its marketing strategies so as to maintain our
competitive edge. The turnover from this business
segment is expected to remain stable in 2015/16.

Looking forward to 2015/16, the Group shall
emphasis on the property development business
and to explore further quality investment
opportunities to enhance its shareholders wealth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECER

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 72, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, president, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Mr.
Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years
of experience in the legal field. He serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit International. Mr. Kwong was
appointed to the Board as an independent non-
executive director in 2003, and was subsequently
re-designated as an executive director in 2007. In
2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company.

MS. LUl YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 57, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member
of the Executive Committee. She is also an
executive director and vice president, and a
member of the Executive Committee of Easyknit
International. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit International. Ms. Lui was appointed
to the Board as an executive director in 2003 and
was appointed as deputy chairman in-2006. She
is, also the mother of Ms. Koon He Yan Candy, an
exeeutive directorn of the Companyl Ms. Lui is alsq
the paternal sjstersin-law of\Mr. Lai Law Kau, a
non-executive director ofrthe Gompany.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER )

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 30, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is
a member of the Executive Committee since 2010.
She is also an executive director, authorised
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham,
England in 2007. She also received her Bachelor
of Laws degree and Legal Practice Course
qualification in 2009 from the College of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui,
the deputy chairman of the Company. She is also
the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau, the non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Mr. Tse, aged 57, is a non-executive director of
the Company. He is also a non-executive director
of Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Adam Smith University of America in the
United States in 1996. He has more than 30
years of experience in garment manufacturing
and merchandising. Mr. Tse was appointed to the
Board as an executive director and vice chairman
in 2005, and was subsequently re-designated from
vice chairman to chairman and appointed as chief
executive officer in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse was re-
designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of the Company and resigned
as chairman and chief executive officer.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER )

MR. LAl LAW KAU

Mr. Lai, aged 54, is a non-executive director of
the Company since 2013. He has been involved
in the textiles industry over 20 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. He is also
a non-executive director of Easyknit International.
Mr. Lai is a paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the
deputy chairman of the Company, and he is also
an uncle of Ms. Koon, an executive director of the
Company.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 64, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2003.
He is also a member and chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Science from The University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30
years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr.
Kan is also an independent non-executive director
of Victory City International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2004.
He is also a member and chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. He is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified PubliclAccountants. He
has over 30 years of experience in,accounting and
auditing and |is now practicing,lin his ownlname as
certified publi¢c accountant.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER )

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 81, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2007. He
is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He is currently a
Partner of Messrs. Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of
solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong and has
been practising in the legal field for more than 30
years. He obtained his LLB from the University
of London in the United Kingdom in 1968 and a
diploma in Chinese Laws from the University of
East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and
in Hong Kong in 1973 and admitted as a barrister
and solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia
in 1982. He is a Notary Public and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERRSE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2015,
with the exception of the following deviation.

Code Provision A.2.1

Chairman and chief executive officer should
not be performed by the same individual

The Company does not have separate
appointments for chairman and chief executive
officer. Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim holds both
positions. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in the same person enables the Group to have a
stable and consistent leadership. It also facilitates
the planning and execution of the Company’s
strategy and is hence, for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERHRET®)

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, with
3 executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors
and 3 independent non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”). The Board has in its composition a
balance of skills and experience necessary for
decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The participation of non-executive Directors in
the Board bring independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
conflicts of interest and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company have been duly considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and
is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s prior written notice to the
other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and
has received from each of them the annual
confirmations of independence required by the
Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board during the year and
up to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - Deputy Chairman
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRET#®)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching

The biographical details of all Directors are set out
in pages 22 to 25 of this annual report. Among
members of the Board, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Mr. Lai Law Kau
is the paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and the uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Save
as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and
policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who
have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of-the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance and corporate
governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors
are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr.
Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRET#®)

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2014/15

NUHSEERESRZECRENHRLR

2014 General
AGM meetings

N14E

RFREAE R&Ae
Number of meetings EEIN | 1 b
Executive Directors yiEs
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRA 11 6/6
Lui Yuk Chu 2Tk 0/ 0/6
Koon Ho Yan Candy BAm 0/ 0/6
Non-executive Directors 305 E
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky ki i 506
Lai Law Kau BER 1 4fp
Independent BUFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Kan Ka Hon B8 1 306
Lau Sin Ming =4 i 6/6
Foo Tak Ching R i 3

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs, results and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management
accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with
a view to giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRS, which/ conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in
all material réspects;

Nomination
Committee

Audit  Remuneration
Board  Committee  Committee
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERHRET®)

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2014/15, the annual and interim results
were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods
to provide shareholders with transparent and
timely financial information.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, on the
financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest
of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company conducted reviews on the effectiveness
of the internal control system. The Audit
Committee reviewed the internal control report. No
major issue has been identified during the course
of review.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRET#®)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

(@)

(e)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management of the
Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4
standing Committees with specific roles and
responsibilities. Their terms of reference and
composition are reviewed and updated regularly
to ensure that they remain appropriate and reflect
changes in good practice and governance. The
terms of reference of each of the Committees
are available on the Company’s website. The
attendance record of the Committee members is
shown on page 30 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31
March 2015.

The principal functions of Audit Committee
include:

— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

— to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Audit Committee (i) reviewed the reports
from the Auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management
representation letters, and management’s
response in relation to the annual results for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2014;
and (ii) reviewed the financial reports for the year
ended 31 March 2014 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2014 and recommended the
same to the Board for approval.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external
auditor of the Company, for the year ended 31
March 2015 amounted to HK$1,385,000 (2014:
HK$1,360,000), and those in relation to non-
audit services amounted to HK$1,682,000 (2014:
HK$1,240,000).

Review of 2014/15 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2014/15
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based
on this review and discussions with management,
the Audit Committee was satisfied that the
consolidated financial statements were prepared
in accordance with applicable accounting
standards, and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the year ended 31 March
2015.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon
and Mr. Foo Tak Ching who are INEDs, and Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2015.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

— to recommend to the Board on the
remuneration package of all executive
Directors and senior management of the
Group;

— to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and
motivate the personnels by providing fair reward
for their contributions to the Group’s performance.
In this context, the remuneration policy is to set
the overall remuneration package at a competitive
level and in a form that permits additional
remuneration to be earned for high performance
over a sustained period. The remuneration
packages are determined with reference to the
time commitment and responsibilities jof each
individual, the Company’s performance |and . the
prevailing market conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policies and structure for the
Directors and senior management of the Group.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 falls
within the following bands:

Remuneration

e

Nil to HK$1,000,000
£ %1,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,500,001 /& 7T £ 2,000,000 /& 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon
and Mr. Lau Sin Ming who are INEDs and Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2015.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board;

— to identify and nominate suitable candidates
of directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.
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The Board adopted a nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which set out the approach to achieving
board diversity in the Company in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its
corporate governance standard. The Company
recognizes the importance of having a diverse
team of board members, which is en essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
The Nomination Committee has been delegated
the authority to review and assess the diversity
of the Board and its skills and experience by
way of consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional
experience. The Nomination Committee will give
consideration to the Policy when identifying and
selecting suitably qualified candidates. The Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; and
(i) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises
all the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive
Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implémentation of
the Group’s strategy set by the/Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading| performance,
funding and financing requirements,| and| reviews
the management performance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary
of the Company, has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code regarding securities transactions by
directors throughout the year ended 31 March
2015.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards. Details of the material
related party transactions are disclosed in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this
Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of the
Company Secretary).

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary and deposit at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to 616share@easyknit.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting,
or shall not less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolutjon
or the business to be dealt with at the general
meeting. It must also be sighed/by all lof the
shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company’s principal place of business iin Hong
Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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The shareholders concerned must deposit a
sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholders concerned under applicable
laws and rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company
for the communication with its shareholders.
Information will be communicated to shareholders
through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange
of all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknitenterp.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views,
and welcomes their questions and concerns raised
in relation to the management and governance of
the Group.

2014 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed
to the constructive use of the AGM as-a forum to
meet with Shareholders and to'hear their |view and
answer their| questiohs about|the Group and its
business.
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The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2014 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions
being proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2014 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2014 AGM

— received the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014 together with
the Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

— re-election of Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai
Law Kau and Mr. Lau Sin Ming as Directors

— re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as Auditor of the Company and authorization to
the Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to repurchase shares of an amount
not exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2014 AGM

— approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to allot and issue of new shares
of an amount not exceeding 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of 2014
AGM
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2015 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
2015 AGM and exercise their rights to vote.
They are invited to ask questions related to
the business of the meeting, and will have an
opportunity to meet with the Directors following
the conclusion of the meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2015 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2015 AGM will be set out
in the circular to Shareholders to be sent together
with this Annual Report and posted on the
Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that
have occurred since 1 April 2015 to the date of
approval of this report.
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Directors’ Report
EETERE

The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 60.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$183,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2015 by independent professional
property valuers and the loss arising on changes
in fair value of investment propertie$, which had
be charged directly to profit or lgss, amounted-to
HK$8,155,000. Details of these |are_8et out in note
17 to the consolidated financial| statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE )

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves for the distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2015 were as follows:

Contributed surplus

N

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus, if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE )

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99,
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Mr. Kan Ka
Hon will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company by
rotation and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive Directors is
independent to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general mleeting has
an unexpired service contract which is_not
determinable by the Company or any!of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation,
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BEEERE®)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transaction”, there was no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transaction”, there was no contract
of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the
end of the year, and there was no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Number
of ordinary
shares held
Name of Director Capacity (long position)
REEER
RBEE
EStR 5% (#8)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 10,370,311
(note i)
FIGNL ERZBAME)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy  Beneficiary of a trust 10,370,311
(note ii)
BUMAL ERIBAWH)
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Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held Total of interest
RERE BRZED
k&8 st Bt
1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
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Notes:

()  These Shares are respectively registered in the name of and are
beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International and it is whollyowned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited (“Magical Profits”) is interested
in approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned by Accumulate More
Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbothom
Trust Company Limited (“Winterbothom Trust”) as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

(i) ~ Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares by
virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000
Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other bedy
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the ag€ of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of| they Company or| any other| body
carporate hor hadjexercised any such right.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRRORERKR G 2 Em

R2015%FE3 8318 RARAKN
SEERNTFHEEREESNBAE
FIEEXVELE 2 & B30 EBE KSR M)
ARRBEBESLENARAIRESF R
HIE 150 % 336 1A E < B
MEZIARZAL(RRBIES
TETBRAERIMNOT

Number
of ordinary Number of Approximate
Name of substantial shares held underlying percentage
shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position)  shares held Total of interest
FREER KRB Ba2BY
TERRER Wi ot RtEA (72) ot it Eps
Koon Wing Yee a  Interest of spouse 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,048,245 48.37%
EXE REER
Landmark Profits Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 2,121,304 - 2,121,304 8.38%
ERAEA
Goodco Development Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 8,249,007 1,877,934 10,126,941 39.99%
ERERRRAT ERERA
Easyknit International aéb Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,048,245 48.37%
KEER REHEE R
Magical Profits ake Igterest of controlled corporation 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
REHEE R
Accumulate More Profits Limited a Igterest of controlled corporation 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
REHEE ER
Winterbothom Trust akd  Trustee 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
EEA
Winterbotham Holdings Limited d Igterest of controllgd corporation 10370311 11877,934 12,248,245 18.37%
SR
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EEeXREw
Number
of ordinary
Name of substantial shares held
shareholder Notes ~ Capacity (long position)
| EELEl
TERRER Wi ah RAtA (iF2)
Markson International Holdings d Interest of controlled corporation 10,370,311
Limited XEHEE RS
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas d  Interest of controlled corporation 10,370,311
Hooper REHEE R
Ivan Geoffery Douglas Hooper d Interest of controlled corporation 10,370,311
REHEE ER
Get Nice Securities Limited e Beneficial owner 298,992,800
EREFARAT ERERA
Get Nice Incorporated e Interest of controlled corporation 298,992,800
XEHEE ER
Get Nice Holdings Limited e Interest of controlled corporation 298,992,800
EHERRRAT AR ER
Notes: Bt

(@)

In the 10,370,311 shares, 2,121,304 shares and 8,249,007 shares
are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark
Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited respectively, both
are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International. Goodco
Development Limited was also interested in 1,877,934 underlying
shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion
of the 2014 Convertible Note. Sea Rejoice Limited is interested
in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical
Profits is interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Winterbotham Trust as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the
Company, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of
the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue-of
her capacity as one of the beneficiariesrof The Magical 2000 Trust.
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of/Ms] Lui Yuk-Ghu, is deemed
to be interested in the 10,370,311 shares and 1,877,984/ underlying
shares by virtue of the SFO.

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held Total of interest
BRI Bazih
R #E it Rl
1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
- 298,992,800 55.35%

- 298,992,800 55.35%

- 298,992,800 55.35%

710,370,311 % A% % & - 2,121,304 & 7
128,249,007 f% % 19 9 5l bALandmark Profits
Limited MESZERER DA 2 AEBRTMEE
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being directors
of the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits Limited,
Goodco Development Limited and Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, being a director of the Company, is also a director of
Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director
of Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits.

With effect from 3 June 2014, the Winterbotham Trust became the
new trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her
spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by Markson
International Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham
Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 60% by Mr.
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. lvan Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper respectively.

298,992,800 are the rights shares underwritten by the underwriter in
respect of the Second Rights Issue. Get Nice Securities Limited is
wholly-owned by Get Nice Incorporated which in turn is wholly-owned
by Get Nice Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015,
the Company had not been notified by any
persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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TRGEERBUIMZKERE) ZHETAC
Winterbotham Holdings Limited ([ Winterbotham
Holdings]) % Markson International Holdings
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE )

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the shareholders of the Company for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Since the adoption date, the Board, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Scheme. During the year ended
31 March 2015, no share option was outstanding,
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. Particulars of the Scheme and details
of the movements during the year in the share
options of the Company are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 5 September 2014, the Company and Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of
the sale share of Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited
(as supplemented by an agreement entered into on
15 September 2014 by the Company and Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, whereby the Company
will indirectly acquire the site located at No. 14
and 16 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong and the sale loan at a consideration
of HK$340 million). This transaction was approved
by the independent shareholders in the special
general meeting held on 20 October 2014 and the
completion of sale and purchase took place on 21
November 2014. Details of the above transaction
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 26
September 2014.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

Save as abovementioned connected transaction,
the Company or its subsidiaries did not have
any material connected transactions which were
subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 12 September 2012, Easyknit Worldwide
Company Limited (an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into
a tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
International which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as landlord in relation to the formal
renewal of the tenancy of a premises at Block A, 7th
Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-
483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Premises”) for a period of 3 years
from 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2015 at a
monthly rental of HK$208,000. The annual cap is
HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual rental
for the Premises based on the monthly rental of
HK$208,000. Details of the formal agreement are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12
September 2012.

BrERBEIHIN REZE2015F 3
A31BHIEFER  KAGHEWNER
AV EITMNEANBERSEEBT LM
RBIAAE T o

201249 A12H * Easyknit
WorIdWide Company Limited (A7
TF? 2 EMBAR)(HERTEF)
&é*ﬁﬁﬁ T(z%$@aﬁ‘£%
HX%K%I K2 E KB AR )(fE
%%E)%Tﬁﬁi%%%% LB AESE
£208,000 B T ERERUREEN
ERYWE S| 8481-4835 FE W
EUNE GﬁHﬁAiZW%U&W
¥]) B2012F9A1H #£ £2015
F8H31H L BH3FE - AF A
H#£208,000 8Tt E FELRA
2,496,000 L ARWECEEMR
e FApacFBENARRAH
5E2012F 9 12B 2 A -

KEEXEBERAT 2014/15 Fi)

53



54

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgRE @

Annual review of the continuing connected
transaction

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the Company’s auditor
to perform certain review procedures in order
to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported the review
procedures to the Board and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (i) has received approval
of the Board; (ii) is in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group, where applicable; (iii) has
been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing the transaction;
and (iv) has not exceeded the cap amounts for
the year ended 31 March 2015. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

Independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected
transaction and the report of the auditor and
confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction is (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to (or from)
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
Announcement was published regarding the
Group’s continuing connected transaction. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related
party transactions that did not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules
made during the year were disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 100% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 36.8% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 91.8% of the Group’s
turnover and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 67.5% of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in the 5 largest; suppliers ofr
customers of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE )

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the time commitment and responsibilities of
individual directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of
its directors as at the date of this report,.the
Company has maintained a sufficient public| float
as required under the Listing |Rules (for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

FE HERERR®D

ARBSEEMHBARBEREER
HEIBRARRER EHES
B BUR

AEEEES 2 HMBRIIH AR AIH
TEERNFCRE  EREATE
AIE 1 T 5l 5E

= H
< X

P el
=H % 1B

Sl

BRAERE

ARBE 2 R BRI B R EADIGE
BIERBE IR - REARABIR
SRR AR B E R

RANBERE

BEARABNRARBEHEZER R
MARREEZMA  RARESHE -
ARABHZE2015F3A31BIEFE
EEREMRAERGEREETHARE
RE o

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited | 2014/15 Annual Report



Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duty of Audit Committee is to review
and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control systems of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent
non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is
set out on pages 26 to 42.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B AN R

TO THE MEMBERS OF EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 145,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE )

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEeEERkHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 20156

BZ201563 831 HIEFE
Notes 2015 2014
it HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Turnover £ 7 192,489 156,940
Cost of goods sold and services $HE R R A A
rendered (155,172) (126,790)
Gross profit E7 37,317 30,150
Other income Hfh e A 9,254 9,224
Other gains and losses H Al K1 9 176 (154)
Other expenses Hinf % (1,621) (1,890)
Distribution and selling expenses FCETZ) PN (4,582) (3,454)
Administrative expenses GGk (31,181) (27,075)
Loss on changes in fair value of REMEZ A TEEBEE
investment properties (8,155) (660)
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of RIEBBEREZ AT EED
investments held for trading Wiz (E18) 40,040 (2,877)
Gain (loss) on fair value change of BATEFAEGZZCRE
financial assets designated as at fair EZANTFEZBKE
value through profit or loss (BH) 411 (1,439)
Finance costs BE KA 11 (6,541) (4,577)
Profit (loss) before taxation B A B A1 (548 35,118 (2,752)
Taxation A 12 (4,032) 211
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ~ ZNA FIRX R fE(S
owners of the Company AEF RN (EE) 13 31,086 (2,541)
Other comprehensive income Ht2HEKA (B)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified BRI REERT P R
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ] it &8 & 7 A F{EE
investments (533) (740)
Exchange differences arising on MERINEBERTBREZ
translation of financial statements of EHER
foreign operations 576 (192)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEHM2MH
for the year WA(FHX) 43 (932)
Total comprehensive income (expense) ARAGIREELEAFEELE
for the year attributable to owners of WA (FX) 2%
the Company 31,129 (3,473)
(Restated)
(E31)
Earnings (loss) per share BRARN(EE)
Basic A 14 HK$2.757 HK$(2.300)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MR R R

At 31 March 2015

R2015F3H31H
Notes 2015 2014
Lir3 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B R&E 16 637 605
Investment properties HEYE 17 924,510 640,569
Loans receivable EER 18 11,500 =
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 17,152 16,139
953,799 657,313
Current assets MENE EE
Properties held for development for FIEHEERME
sale 20 560,914 —
Deposits and prepayments for BAGELELE
acquisition of properties held for Mx2ZE R
development for sale SEENE 84,848 =
Trade and other receivables 25 REMENZIA 21 10,820 9,707
Bills receivable W IR 22 869 -
Loans receivable e B 18 12,140 17,500
Investments held for trading HIEESRE 23 91,557 86,902
Financial assets designated as at fair BRAEEFABRZ
value through profit or loss SREE 24 - 28,622
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR MRS 25 204,234 589,458
965,382 732,189
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B2 R E MR FIR 26 26,272 23,296
Tax payable eI IR 6,909 6,909
Secured bank borrowings BIEAEETIEE 27 146,140 6,973
179,321 37,178
Net current assets REEEFE 786,061 695,011
Total assets less current liabilities BELTRTDAR 1,739,860 1,352,324
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Convertible note RESES 28 11,153 54,047
Deferred tax liabilities BRENEGE 29 18,277 20,254
Secured bank borrowings BEARITEER 27 147,785 154,929
177,215 229,230
1,562,645 1,123,094
Capital and reserves BEAR G
Share capital LN 30 253 2,966
Reserves fEE 1,562,392 1,120,128
1,562,645 1,123,094

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 145 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

N

DIRECTOR
EF

EEeN2015F6 25 A ERBEHEERE60

T145 2454

KEE

PBBHRE - Lm MIESHRRE

Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR
EZ
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERZEEHR

For the year ended 31 March 20156

EZ2015F3 531 HIFFE
At 1 April 2013 120134 418

Change in fair value of avallable- ~ FEEREREY

for-sale investments NEES
Exchange differences arising A= B8 E1NEH
on translation of financial RRENER
statements of foreign operations
Loss for the year TEEEE
Total comprehensive expense for  A£E2
the year s
Issue of new shares Btk

Transaction costs atiributable to ~ Z{75k 22 BAiA
issue of new shares
Reduction of share capital upon ~ RAEAE 2R

capital reorganisation Al
Set-off contributed surplus against & AZs#E # 2t
accumulated losses R

Recogniton of equiy component of 722
convertble note %)
Deferred tax liabiity on recognition ERTEREERES

of equity component of A2 EERA
convertble note 8f

At 31 March 2014 N014EIA3ME

Change in fair value of avallable- ~ TEHERE Y
for-sale investments ATEES

Exchange diferences arising ~~ AZENEERE K
on translation of financial HR/EHER
statements of foreign operations

Proft for the year RERET

Total comprehensive income KERREMA
(expense) for the year (Fx)ag

Issue of new shares B

Transaction costs atiributableto %75 R2RGRA
issue of new shares
Issue of shares on conversion of ~ HETARZEE

convertble note Bkt

Reduction of share capital upon ~ [RAEAE 2k
capital reorganisation i

Set-off contributed surplus against A B&AEE:
accumulated losses B

Deferred tax liabiity on recognition BT AR FiER
of equity component of Kbz ERHE
convertible note 8f

A 31 March 2015 Ra0653A1 8

Convertible
note Investment  Property

Share Share equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation revaluation Accumulated

capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
 BkES N

Ra  REEE  BEER  RABE  80ER  ENRR L B Riid g
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
AT TAT AT AT AT TAT AT AT AT TAT
4119 350,042 - 53194 285975 26,116 - 40,624 28809 797,879
- - - - - - (T40) - - (T40)
- - - - - (192) - - - (192)
- - - - - - - - (2.541) (2.541)
- - - - - (192) (T40) - (2.541) (3.473)
18126 274516 - - - - - - - 292,642
- (1,857) - - - - - - - (1,857)
(19.279) - - - 19,219 - - - - -
- - - - (11,227) - - - 1,227 -
- - 45,500 - - - - - - 45,500
- - (7,597) - - - - - - (7,597)
2,066 631,701 37,908 53194 294027 25,924 (T40) 40,624 37495 1,123,094
- - - - - - (533) - - (533)
- - - - - 576 - - - 576
- - - - - - - - 31,086 31,086
- - - - - 576 (533) - 31,086 31,129
503 35,379 - - - - - - - 361,312
- (2,330) - - - - - - - (2,330
1229 18,771 (36,599) - - - - - - 43401
(9.879) - - - 9,875 - - - - -
- - - - (42,776) - - - 4,116 -
- - 6,039 - - - - = = 6,039
253 1,063,521 1,343 53194 261,126 26,500 (1.273) 40,624 111,857 1,562,645
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

MEEZEEH R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE2015F3 31 HIFFE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to
the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February
2003, October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October
2014 and March 2015, part of which was applied to set off against
accumulated losses of the Company in October 2009, December
2012, November 2013, October 2014 and March 2015. The balance
may be utilised by the directors in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and
prepaid lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

AREBZBRAFBHERRARFR2004F3 A K
2005F 9 B A HIm AR AN BT EE £ 2 #E Bk - Al A5 2R
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20094107 2012% 12 7  2013% 11 A -
2014 F10 A %2015 F 3 AR MR AREEZ
#EER o E R2009F108 2012612 4 »
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Consolidated Statement of Cash

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

Operating activities
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation

Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value
changes of investments held for

trading
Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on disposal of property, plant

and equipment

(Gain) loss on fair value change of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Loss on changes in fair value of

investment properties

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital

(Increase) decrease in trade and other

receivables

(Increase) decrease in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Decrease (increase) in investments held

for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash from (used in) operations
Dividend received from investments

Net cash from (used in) operating
activities
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Flows
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FBT
35,118 (2,752)
(5,565) (6,388)
6,541 4,577
152 87
(32,247) 3,698
(3,447) (2,676)
(13) -~
(411) 1,439
8,155 660
8,283 (1,355)
(1,318) 13,289
(869) 153
(6,140) =
27,592 (17,696)
(982) (1,646)
26,566 (7,255)
3,447 2,676
30,013 (4,579)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBEERER®)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

Investing activities

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Addition of investment properties

Addition of properties held for
development for sale

Deposits and prepayments paid for
acquisition of property held for
development for sale

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Redemption of financial assets
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three
months

Placement of bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three
months

Purchase of financial assets
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net cash used in investing activities

Note
Kz

REED
WEME AR R SR

R 33
REREBYE
REREHERRDE

BABELERRMEZ
Be REMAK

BAASHERE
BAYE  BELERE

BORATESABRR L
THEE

=Xe )
HEME  BERREY
8RR

IRER i34 = 6 A 518 2 8
TR

HBB=EATS R
TR

BARRFEFARRZLZ
TREE

ARRERS R FR

KEREXEBEERAT 2014/15 £,

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(339,931) -
(287,686) (21,102)
(228,156) -
(77,725) -
(1,546) (16,879)
(183) (551)
29,033 -
5,845 6,388

13 -

- 130,000

- (130,000)

= (30,061)
(900,336) (62,205)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HmEBREREXR®)

For the year ended 31 March 20156

BZ201563 831 HIEFE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financing activities AR
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHR 2 TS 5IE 361,312 292,642
Bank borrowings raised E£ERTEE 139,000 -
Bank borrowings repaid BEBITEE (6,977) (6,785)
Interest paid B F A (6,034) (4,485)
Transaction costs attributable to issue  Z7TH % 2 22 H B 2K
of new shares (2,330) (1,857)
Proceeds from issue of convertible BITAIMRER 2 15
note e} - 100,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue ~ ZE{TA[RREE 22 5
of convertible note B - (545)
Net cash from financing activities RERE RS REFHE 484,971 378,970
Net (decrease) increase in cash and Re kERBFE2(RD)
cash equivalents ENFEE (385,352) 312,186
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#ZR & kERRE
of the year 589,458 277,411
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SPE[E R&3) 2 5/ & 128 (139)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRZIHE&NERRS
year, represented by bank balances HIRTTHEBRNE S
and cash 204,234 589,458
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). As at 31 March 2015, Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”) owned 40.96%
(31 March 2014: 36.27%) of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company. In addition, Easyknit International holds
convertible note issued by the Company which is convertible
into shares of the Company at any time from its issuance
date on 27 March 2014 to its maturity date which enables
Easyknit International to increase its shareholding of the
Company to 45.03% (31 March 2014: 57.40%) upon exercise
of the conversion option based on the capital structure of
the Company as at 31 March 2015. Taking into account the
relevant facts and circumstances, particularly the size of
Easyknit International’s holding of voting rights, including
potential voting rights arising from conversion of the
convertible note, relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of other vote holders, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Company is a subsidiary of Easyknit
International, upon completion of Easyknit International’s
subscription of convertible note issued by the Company,
under the definition of control and the related guidance set
out in HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). As such, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Easyknit International, which is also incorporated
in Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new interpretation and amendments to HKFRSs
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants*

and HKAS 41
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions®

Equity method in separate
financial statements*

Sale and contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Step 5:

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15 may have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of the HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payments”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote
holders;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not attributable to qualifying assets are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
development for such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transactions costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under development. Investment
properties under development are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any difference between the
fair value of the investment properties under development and
their carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. The carrying amount is arrived
at after taking into account the reversal of any previously
recognised accumulated impairment loss to profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment at the date when impairment is reversed does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been had the
impairment not been recognised. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified
as current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three
categories including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale investments and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains
or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

FESTHER 2

SRMIAE)
THEEE)
BERFEFAERZ 2B EE(F)

BREFEESREEN  ETIFERT
Eﬂﬁéﬂﬁ’é%ﬂ}’ﬂﬁﬁm B RE R FERA

o ZAEANBRRIAIRR D AT B R R
AREAZT B 3

s HHESREER—HTREEITHA
EIMEF 280 HEBRERRZ
AETUARFEREE  ZRAKERE
ZEBEEIRERRE  ARKREAR
ERZBANARDEZER + &

s HABRE-BIAZEASTLETANZ
B AR AEE S ERIE 95

RFFEENDAHHZE(BELRRE)RE

RERFEFARGSZEHEE -

N

BRAFEFABRIEBREERATETD
B B ESIBZERNLFEESHNZE
DELHRERNESHER - NEEERZ
hEBRFETEEMNEREERRZAE
AIRSHAE -

IR ELBEE

AHHESREERINETA  HERTE
N BRABRRAFEFAER EREE
ERRERFERIHEEIH I KE -

Fﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁéﬁéi&%,ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ@i@%
B -RAVEEIREMZERAER IR
Txﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%?ﬁ CEEREREENL
ERRER  TARREEGRHERN R
AREEREER I BERE(REREER
BEZEBRNT) o

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loans receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an
item of trade and other receivables, or loans receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible note containing liability and equity components

The component parts of compounds instruments (convertible
note) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible note containing liability and equity components
(continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
note are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the lives of the convertible note using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated
by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contribution.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

4.
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Critical judgments in applying accounting policies ERSTER 2 EEH
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those )%/F&E‘;Hﬁfl?)&l\ T AEERERAR
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have B2 Bk BT RERE VB RETE

made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong are depreciable, they are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from investment properties located in
Hong Kong, the management determined that the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

mziﬁﬁwéﬁ Z- -2 i

REWEHELH R

RATERBRAPERNGENRENEESE
MECHARBHRETHRBEEMS © B2
BERSASBEZRENFASTRR  #
AEEEURBENRENEATNE - B
HYFREXGECRRERRIERREY
EMBENRREDEENGROEBEAR
Ao Al EEEASBUREBIREY
EMEANETHER  BEERTERMH
EREEARFERAFELRENELZR
RS

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, ?ﬁﬂi’ilﬁﬁ/\ﬂP IZ?‘XE%%?@? CEEE
the management concluded that they are depreciable and REENFHERBEEEEBE2MRERMm
are being held under a business model whose objective is to 3Fi§k§f:} HERENEMBEE E’Jiﬁﬁ*ﬁ
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in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
arising from investment properties located in the PRC, the
management determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale is rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in estimating the
expected discounted future cash flows. If the actual future
cash flows are less than the original estimated cash flows of
loans receivable, additional allowances would be required.

Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of the reporting period, the management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs
can be derived from observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will
adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is disclosed in note 17.

4.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the borrowings and convertible note disclosed
in notes 27 and 28, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and
other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of bank
borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

6. e TH
a. £RIEAEZER

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 17,152 16,139
Fair value through profit or loss BATEGF A B
— investments held for trading - RBEEERE 91,557 86,902
— financial assets designated as at - BRAFEFABEZRZ
FVTPL TREE - 28,622
Loans and receivables (including cash EFRREWRFIE(BERS
and cash equivalents) RERBES)
— Trade and other receivables — BH R H U FIE 8,256 8,007
— Bills receivable - BEEE 869 -
— Loans receivable — BHER 23,640 17,500
— Bank balances and cash — RITEHRERE 204,234 589,458
345,708 746,628
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost B SR
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR 9,063 6,295
Convertible note AHRRER 11,153 54,047
Secured bank borrowings BIEFIETEE 293,925 161,902
314,141 292,244
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEEREBREERBE

AEBZIZESRMIABEITHEER

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, financial assets designated as at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
convertible note and secured bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. @I R

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEERREBEEERBE(E)
(continued)
Market risk ik 0
(i)  Currency risk () EEER
Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign HRAEBEETHEBAR - UE
currency sales or purchases denominated in e BB AN INEEITIHE R
currencies other than their functional currencies, . BEAREEEAIIINEE
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. % o 4790% (20144 : 91%) 2
Approximately 90% (2014: 91%) of the Group’s AEBFHERUNEEER Y4
sales are denominated in currencies other than the EENNEETE  ZET5ME
functional currency of the group entities making the ZEBANEEERB  EREE
sale, whilst almost all purchases are denominated in HI|{E
the group entities’ functional currency.
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign RIEBRK - UINETIEZEE
currency denominated monetary assets and EREBEENEEABZE
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period HEWNT :
is as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L BE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx &L FET FET
Renminbi (RMB”) AR - — 29,400 15
HKD BT - = 28 28
United States dollars (‘USD”) 7t 19 43 16,753 19,406

KEREXEBEERAT 2014/15 £,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of
RMB, HKD and USD.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2014:
5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit
or a decrease in loss where functional currency of

£RMIER®)
b. HEBEREEEERKEZ)

T ACY)
() E¥mEEE)
BRESM

AEBZERRARIERAR
% BIRET -

TRHAJNEEEEER 2 S
B ERINEFHEREES% < 8
BUE 2 5% (20144 : 5%) &8
EBHERTEEABES 2 M-
FRENMERENINEFE 2
HWAFRE®ER « ¥R FEKRA
HHBERER 7 5% ZF o
THEEREREBEEEEE LY
BE G H AR INEBI (A 5% FTE R
B a8 FIl 2 sk B 1R RL A o S B
BERZNEEELABINEFE
5% BEHIERERASIAR

the relevant group entities weaken 5% against the ZEE MR EEe B
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% strengthening
of functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or
loss, and the amounts below would be negative.
RMB impact HKD impact USD impact
ARB25E B EY 4%
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Increase in profit &340
(2014: decrease (20144 :
in loss) BiERD) 1,227 1 1 1 699 808

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to its
bank balances, financial assets designated as at
FVTPL and bank borrowings. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 27. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loans receivable and convertible note. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR?”) arising from bank borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as referred to above at the
end of the reporting period and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting
period in the case of instruments that have floating
rates. A 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$795,000 (2014: post-tax loss increase/decrease
by HK$690,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

6. @I R

b.

BREREEERRBE(E)

S mE(E)
(i) FIEEE

M=EREE

AEE 2 TENERER YRR
BER - BAVEFARGZZSR
BEMBIEE AKREERZ
FEREEBRE LM F27H
B AEETAZHERE LSRR
ERRA KRR A FEFEX
Rl - NEBEYORAEREMMDT
EANAERZMERR A
- EEES N EERMNEER
E#EBEERAEAF EER
KR TR MEE1TE -

ARERERMAGBZHEERE
REAMEZRBESEAREE—
AL AREZRLREF
EEBREIEEFNERITEE L
EERTAXKE(ERRITA
ERSDKE -

MR GEE

AT 2 BB 5 47 7o BB M
MR E A IEFTETAZF
=R R BB RIS 2 e
2URT 8T AN BE B
TR EE - 50 228 sk
BORBRATEEEARNY
B 45 71 3 L0 T 1 % 1B R AT
R AR ARED -

1 A & = 7 5k 1K 1A 50 18 & % B
MATEEMAEZERTE A&
B R E £20154F 38318 IF &
B2 REREFEMD e
795,000/ 7T.(2014 5 : Fif2/EA
#9052 690,000 7T ) o A&
BRAXzHERAREERE T

BiEE -

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (continued)

The bank balances and financial assets designated
as at FVTPL are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers
that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange
of issuers operating in banking and finance industry
sector. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 5%
(2014: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2015 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$3,823,000 (2014: decrease/
increase in post-tax loss by HK$3,628,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading and financial assets designated as
at FVTPL.

6. 2R TR »)

MHERERERREE(E)

e mEE(E)

(i)

(i)

FIEER (&)
MEGRE (&)

ROTEBRRELVEFARRLZ
CREETEREHRENTA
AASEEEER AN E KD
WAEK o

ERERA REBESNALT
R REEREER  E S S
REB LRI ERER -

R E1&

BRRENETRAES A%
BAZKRAERRER EHEEZR
BRETARRIKEERNE
EZER - AREZBRAERE
BT BEERNEXR LT ZBRA
TA HZETAUSRORER
T% - Wi AEBERERA—F
BIEB A SR ERERREEE
FERLIPZER o

BRENT

o

ATEEESTRRENEEH
RAEZ ZBABRERERE -

HAERBIEEEREZ ERA
EHZEREFTH5% (2014
F:5%) HEEEREREAD
FEFAABZZEREELATE
ZEBBEHNEZE 201543 A 31
BIEFERERFEM R
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(iii)  Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments had been 5%
(2014: 5%) higher/lower, investment revaluation
reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$858,000 (2014: HK$807,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2015 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In view of the nature of business,
the Group targets on a focused market. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has concentration of credit risk in the
trade receivables balance amounting to approximately
HK$4,686,000 (2014: HK$6,016,000) derived from the five
largest customers with good credit history in garment
industry. There is also concentration risk in respect of
the Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 March
2015 amounting to approximately HK$129,888,000 (2014:
HK$107,170,000) out of total turnover of approximately
HK$192,489,000 (2014: HK$156,940,000) which was
made to one single customer. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has reviewed
the financial position, liquidity and recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

6. @I R

MHRREEERRIE(E)

S mEE(E)
(iif) RAERE R (%)
FREDW(E)

I Er ft HH B8 E 2 ETRA
BHEE®REFH /T %5% (2014
F:5%) REBEHFEEBRT
HHEERE 2N FEE &ML
i/ /2 #1858,0005% 7T(2014
£ :807,000) °

EEER

¥ 7 AeEB1TR2015F3 A31H A
BEBERRACHEECEML  AIRE
BETAE 2 ReEERRAZATBR
MRV 2 ZEEBEZIREE - BhEK
HEmMS  REBUAEFTHEEEZ -
R2015%F3 A31H ' "REBHRBERK
ROTEERIFEERHZRAERARR
2B 5 I WK IR 4 # 40 4,686,000% TT
(20144 : 6,016,000/ L ) 2 EH 2 E
Ek - EEASEEZE2015F3 A31H
IFF S 2 #8125 %8 #4)192,489,000 7 7T
(20144 : 156,940,000 7T ) B K B
BE—RPzEHEK4 129,888,000 T
(20144 : 107,170,000787T) ° ARDE
ERK  AEE2 EEE T HEMER
B HRINFIBZHEMRN  REEE K
MU El ¢ 5 - ARRE ST B 58
e RHVREEE - it s - AR
EEREAEEZ EERBRE AERIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in
relation to loans receivable from a few borrowers
amounting to approximately HK$23,640,000 at 31 March
2015 (2014: HK$17,500,000). The largest borrower of
the Group by itself accounted for approximately 42%
(2014: 57%) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2015. At 31 March 2015, all loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired and the borrowers are assessed
to have satisfactory credit quality with reference to
financial background and creditability of individual
borrowers, subsequent settlement and payment history
of the borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$60,000,000 (2014:
HK$60,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

6. 2R TR »)

b.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. @I R

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HBEREEEEREE(E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELEE(E)
Liquidity tables REELZ
More than
3 months but Total
Effective Less than less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1year  cash flows amount
BB3EA KBRS
7= HR3fER 8L & BB1E iib-£- REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FAT FET AT
2015 20155
Non-derivative financial  3EfT4£ 2B EE
liabilities
Trade and other B REMER
payables FE - 9,063 - - 9,063 9,063
Convertible note aRRE 13.01 - - 20,400 20,400 11,153
Secured bank BRAROES
borrowings 2.69 3,786 149,692 183,172 336,650 293,925
12,849 149,692 203,572 366,113 314,141
2014 2014%
Non-derivative financial 314 BERE
liabilities
Trade and other BS RS
payables B = 6,295 = — 6,295 6,295
Convertible note TREZE 12.72 - - 102,000 102,000 54,047
Secured bank BERROES
borrowings 2.72 2,822 8,466 194,089 205,377 161,902
9,117 8,466 296,089 313,672 222,244
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value

(i)

(i)

6. 2R TR »)

AV

ch
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are (i)
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy
tREE NEE AP ERE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale investments 17,152 16,139  Level 1
fEERE F11
Investments held for trading 91,557 86,902  Level 1
BIFEERE E18
Financial assets designated as - 28,622  Level 2
at FVTPL F2H

BRATEFABRZEREE

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.
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Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERTREERARE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RRRMISM R B

Quoted bid prices in an active market

WEBMSM & B

The fair value is determined based
on the price that the counterparty
financial institution would pay to
redeem the units
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and sales
related taxes, rental income from property leasing and interest
income from loan financing during the year. An analysis of the
Group’s turnover is as follows:

Sales of goods EmiieE
Rental income
Interest income from loan financing

REERRE 2N EHRA

3

LERFRFAARIT AR EHERBRIAR
ZEMEEZEWHEKRERE  KELEY
XZHEEBMARKEERBE ZME KRR
B ARBZEXENMMT :

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered or services
provided. This is also the basis of organisation, whereby
the management has chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” are: (a) garment sourcing and
exporting, (b) property investment, (c) property development,
(d) investment in securities and (e) loan financing.

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
172,082 142,138
19,256 13,927
1,151 875
192,489 156,940
PTEER
RERDPERDBRIFTMEMS - 2HAEN
EEZEERERARE(ZTBELERRE ]
HETBREBRZER  DEFRERRIFa
RAGIREZTESE - WM BEG EE B
BEBENNRAGAEEEREREZEZE -
RERBHBEREENESHILEDIH]
REBZEENERDIA : (@) FERHO
KK D)IFERRE  CWEER  (EFH

BREN () EFME -

KEE
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BIFE2016F3H31 HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7XHER##
Segment revenue and results PTEEEERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and RIEEREROEBOMAEE 2 B EE N E
results by operating and reportable segment: B
For the year ended 31 March 2015 B E2015F3 531 HILFE
Garment Investment
sourcing and Property Property in Loan
exporting  investment  development securities financing  Eliminations ~Consolidated
REBR
EARK NERE NEER #ERE EXHE fiis &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Turnover EX%

External IR 172,082 19,256 - - 1,151 - 192,489
Segment (loss) profit S (ER) &7 (3,660) 3,998 (704) 43,853 1,051 - 44,538
Other income HfA 5,194
Other gains and losses ~ Zt AL ER 176
Other expenses EfpFIX (1,609)
Finance costs HERA (6,541)
Unallocated corporate  E/E 7 ARIET

expenses (7,240)
Profit before taxation B &A1& 35,118
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014 3531 HILFEE

Garment Investment
sourcing and Property in Loan

exporting investment securities financing  Eliminations  Consolidated

RER
HAKK NERE EHRE ERRE iz e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FAT AT AT AT

Turnover b

External IR 142,138 13,927 - 875 - 156,940
Segment (loss) profit 24 (518 &7 (4,908) 8,913 (1,738) 768 - 3,035
Other income =R/ ON 6,548
Other gains and losses E Ml 58 (154)
Other expenses =0 (1,839)
Finance costs BEKA (4,577)
Unallocated corporate E2E 7 A alf%

expenses (5,765)
Loss before taxation  BFAIEIE (2,752)
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BZ20156F3 831 HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. D EER#®
Segment revenue and results (continued) PEEEEREE(E)
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable RERERD B2 EFTBUREH T RHTEES
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies REBZ 5T HEER - 2B N (EE) D
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the result B2 EE sHhREIPEHEMWA - H
incurred by each segment without allocation of other income, folizm Rk EE - BT  BERNANRED
other gains and losses, other expenses, finance costs and RARHY - MtstERAERE s TELE
unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported REEZR  ERERSERRRATH 22
to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation Z o
and performance assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and REERERNBOMAEEHCEERAR
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: N
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FET
Segment assets DEEE
Garment sourcing and exporting BB R ORK 8,387 6,515
Property investment MERE 1,070,635 721,188
Property development YRR 568,120 —
Investment in securities BHEE 108,714 131,669
Loan financing EXREE 23,720 17,591
Total segment assets DEPEELTE 1,779,576 876,963
Unallocated bank balances and cash EHRRTEHRIIRE 139,389 512,052
Others HAh 216 487
Consolidated assets REERE 1,919,181 1,389,502
Segment liabilities AEEE
Garment sourcing and exporting RS & I AKX 3,413 2,663
Property investment MERE 15,999 14,884
Property development MEER 462 -
Total segment liabilities DHEELE 19,874 17,547
Secured bank borrowings BEAEITEE 293,925 161,902
Convertible note AR T 11,153 54,047
Unallocated SN 31,584 32,912
Consolidated liabilities mEaE 356,536 266,408
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e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank balances and
cash and assets used jointly by operating and reportable

segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities,
liability portion of convertible note, secured bank
borrowings and liabilities for which operating and
reportable segments are jointly liable.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions BARE
Depreciation ik
Gain on fair value FEEEREL

change of investments ~ AFEZEUE
held for trading

Gain on fair value BATEF AR
change of financial SREECATE
assets designated FElea
as at FVTPL

Loss on change in fair ~ RENEZ ATE

value of investment FEEE
properties

TEER @)
SHREERERZ)

Eﬁ"*ﬂi‘%iﬁﬁf? Rut o #bfE 2z R D B M

a s

- RESERTERRFESREERER
NEERERZEBEN  MBEEEES
RELERE®RH I o
- BRENHE BEHESE  TRKRE
Ba f W AEARTEEREER
RO BEARAEBEIN  BEERE
EORELERZWRHE -
BE2015F3H31 HILFE
BEEFENDERINBEEL SR
Garment
sourcing and Property Property  Investment Loan
exporting  investment development  in securities financing  Unallocated Total
RBR
R&iL0 NERE NEER #ERE LEE EAR Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr
179 291,623 - - - - 291,802
44 108 - = = = 152
- - = (40,040) - = (40,040)
- - - (411) - - (411)
- 8,155 - - - - 8,155
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BZ20156F3 831 HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. D EER#®
Other segment information (continued) Hitnp BEN(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZ2014 F3 531 HILFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EREEMEN BRI HEELERE
segment assets:
Garment
sourcing and Property Investment Loan
exporting investment in securities financing Unallocated Total
RER
R A nERE EHRE EX@E EAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Capital additions BXAE = 28,961 = = = 28,961
Depreciation il 44 43 - - - 87
Loss on fair value BEBERECATE
change of investments ~ Z&E#E
held for trading - - 2,877 - - 2,877
Loss on fair value BATEFAER L
change of financial SREEZATE
assets designated 2858
as at FVTPL - - 1,439 - - 1,439
Loss on change in fair  &ENEZATE
value of investment 28Eis
properties - 660 - - = 660
Geographical information ith 33 &

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the

PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
shipment location of customers and information about its
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and loans
receivable) by geographical location of the assets are detailed

below:

Europe BUM
Hong Kong B
PRC o

The United States of America %

AREZLENNTERTHE -

BRREIREFER MR D 2 AEB &
ZIRBEE

XBLRBE M E

Revenue from external

S

(TeEemIARBKER

JHEMT

customers Non-current assets
RENREF 2&EXE FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000 ~  HK$000 HK$°000
FAT THET FET FHET
34,490 24,345 - -
12,635 9,182 678,896 429,061
7,772 5,620 246,251 212,113
137,592 117,793 - —
192,489 156,940 925,147 641,174
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For the year ended 31 March 20156

BE2015F3831 AIEEE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. P EER
Information about major customers FEEFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years BAREEHEABEI0N N L ZBEPZ&F
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as EEERENT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T
Customer A' EEA 129,888 107,170
! Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting. ! REFEREAKK 2 L% -
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HithsE= RER
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Net exchange gain (loss) B 5 e (&518 ) F 88 176 (154)
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.ESkEEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) FRESHE2EHR
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company @5201\5@3)% BJ1BLEFEARAE
for the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: EMeHINMT
Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui HoYan ~ Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo
Cheung Tim ~ Yuk Chu Candy Ricky  Law Kau KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Total
BRA B34 B i BER L] ] fER 8
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
741 V2.3 FAr FAr 741 b3 7L FAr 741
Fees Rl - - - 130 130 130 130 130 650
Other emoluments Eftie
- Salaries and other ~ — 8RR
benefits 900 1,560 312 - - - - - 2,172
— Contributions to - RiVEAFEHS
retirement benefit
schemes - 18 15 - - - - - 3
Total directors' emoluments EZA(5 4% 90 1,578 37 130 130 130 130 130 3455
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments
(continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

10.EEREEZHE @

(a) ERESME2ER(E)

HE2014FE3831 AIEEEARARAE
EMEHHNNT

Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui HoYan ~ Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo
Cheung Tim Yk Chu Candy Ricky — Law Kau KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Total
BRA B BAf S BER BF 4=4 R o
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
FAT FAT AT AT FAT FAT AT AT FAT
Fess EEiE - - - 125 4 125 125 125 543
Other emoluments Hiphie
—Salaresandother  — EARA{E)
benefits 900 1,286 312 - - - - - 2,448
— Contributions to - RivBAIFEIRS
retirement benefit
schemes - 15 15 - - - - - 30
Total directors’ emoluments EER& 4% 90 1,251 327 125 4 125 125 125 3,021

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two directors whose emoluments were included above
for both years. The emoluments of the remaining three
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

e MEMAER]
ERREEA T BIHR

Salaries and other benefits
Contribution to retirement benefits
schemes

BRAEETRERR ZBREITRER
FENERBZMERRBEERBRT
BRABET Rt 2 RTS -

(b) FHEEEMER
AEEIELRRMEALBREREE

2 RENMEFECHMEEBREL
XA BEp=% THEFE KaHE

ALHIT
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
3,174 3,168
59 49
3,233 3,217
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments
(continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

10.EEREEZHME 2
(b) EHESMLENE)

BEZMEN T TIIHE -

2015 2014

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

ESAH 1EE AN

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & c £ 2,000,000 %5 7T 1 1
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and the other three (2014: three)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
In addition, during both periods, no director waived any
emoluments.

RREFE  AEBEREXNHETE
EREM=22014F  =R)55 8
E2Z AT EAMASEMALSE B
ZREARERE ZEE o I R
EHE  LEEEHETAMSE -

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERA
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly NERAFANBHERZ
repayable within five years BITEEF S 5,111 4,485
Effective interest expense AR EE 2 BERF B RAX
on convertible note 1,430 92
6,541 4,577
12. TAXATION 12. B 18
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
The charge (credit) comprises: RX(GTA) B :
Deferred tax (note 29) ERERRIE(f12229) 4,032 (211)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit for both years.

RASERMEFEHERRPOEHN - A
ATRRAEMEHEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

12. TAXATION (continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from

1 January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as assessable profits is wholly absorbed by tax losses

brought forward for both years.

Tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
results per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

12. MIE (%)

EiES]

BiPEARANBELMEEMERE( L

Bk D REEMBREZERIEH -

NERBEZHB AT E2008F1 A1 HEZR

RE25% o

R 8 R T ) 7 PR {1 4 10 43 450 7 ol 75 TR U5
B2HEHE BT RPECEMEHRE -

AEEHRERX GIA) BBk EME
HRERFEZHRNOT -

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BRas A& A (B 18) 35,118 (2,752)
Tax charge (credit) at the applicable rate REAHZE16.5% (2014 & :
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 16.5% 5T E 2 FBERAL (GTA) 5,794 (454)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIRAZRIEBLZ
for tax purposes (8,453) (3,726)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMFAT 2 HELE
for tax purposes 4,695 707
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMBBEZHIETE 2,862 2,905
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABERERTBEBE
previously not recognised MIEZE (2,833) (113)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries @ ERNE T/XZW% Al
operating in other jurisdictions BMERER I ZE 1,886 486
Others Hith 81 (16)
Tax charge (credit) for the year AEERERZ (FTA) 4,032 (211)
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

13. X Enf (&R)

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived AEF RN (EE)E K
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) SEME (At 10(@) 3,455 3,021
Other staff costs, including retirement HAnB TR - BRI
benefits costs BAA 12,527 12,086
Total staff costs BT AEzE 15,982 15,107
Auditor’s remuneration % B M B 1,385 1,360
Cost of inventories recognised BERERBAZ 2 FEME
as an expense 155,172 126,790
Depreciation e 152 87
and after crediting to other income: RREMAGTA -
Bank interest income SRAITHI B 5,565 6,388
Dividend income from listed investments L& ZBREWA 3,447 2,676
14. BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14. SIREAXER (EE)
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share AATIREELZERERNEF(EER) IR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BIATER:E :
following data:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings (loss) BRI (E518)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic TEREAZF(BE) NS
earnings (loss) per share ZBA(EE) 31,086 (2,541)
2015 2014
’000 ’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E351)
Number of shares RAEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HREREABF(BE) NS
shares for the purpose of basic earnings ZINEFS T ERIRODEE
(loss) per share 11,274 1,105
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

14.

15.

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

(continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding convertible note because the
conversion price of this convertible note was higher than the
average market price of shares for the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2014
had not been presented as conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible note would result in a decrease in
loss per share.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group had the following related
party transactions which also constituted continuing
connected transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Easyknit International:

Rental expense ALY

14. 2R EXBHN(EE) ®

B E2015F3A31HILFE Bt EER
BERAN KR A RZITEAR B AR LIS
ZABMBERE  ARSAURERRECABE
BBAARFEEFHNHERZIRE -

HBARNRAMARLBZ JBREE  HER
FREBRD  RTE25EE2014F3 A
31 HIEFETREBER -

15.BEALIRS BERS

(@) FR - AREEKEERZZENBEL
AAEBKRERERSZAEALRS

M :
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$°000

FAT AT

2,496 2,496

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one
of the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74%
(2014: 36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at
31 March 2015. She also holds 21.95% (2014: 21.95%)
equity interest of Easyknit International through an entity
wholly-owned by her. The Company is considered as a
subsidiary of Easyknit International at 31 March 2015 and
31 March 2014 under the definition of control and related
guidance set out in HKFRS 10.

RARBIZEFELHRLZ L R2015%F
SABIB M AR A KEBK36.74%
(20144 : 36.74% ) ER R EEET
AZ— BB ME2EHEZE
BEMiEA k=B 21.95% (2014 4 :
21.95% ) o REB ST EREER
E105 IR HIE 2 E& MEREIES
7201543 A31H k201443 831H
AABHEEBKEBRBEZ —HBA
aj o
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For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) In January 2011, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the
spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, to act as general manager
of the Company for a salary of HK$50,000 per month
which is adjusted to HK$150,000 per month with effect
from 1 April 2013. The employment agreement, which
constitutes a connected transaction, commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either party
at any time by three months’ notice. The remuneration
of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2015 was
HK$1,950,000 (2014: HK$1,950,000) and was included in
the “compensation of key management personnel” in (d)
below.

(c) Details of convertible note issued to Easyknit International
during the current year are set out in note 28.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits KEEEREH
Salaries and other benefits e REMBER

Contributions to retirement benefit
schemes

ERRE T B

15.BEANLTRE, BERS @)

(b)

R2011F1 A ARABEFEERL L
ZEBEXELELETIEAGZ N
A #50,000% ;tE B & AKX R E 2
KIBH2013FE4R1ARARES A
150,000/8 7T ° ZiEK—THEBRH 2
ERHZMA2011FE2 21 BFK ' 2
IRERKERERER—FLET=
EABMMEKILE - HZ=201543 A 31
HIEFAEXKEREEERNRRRK
784 51,950,000 7T (2014 £ ¢
1,950,000/8 7T ) RE BIEEA T (d) 1B
ZIEZEBABZHMIA -

RAFRNETTRERRZIRKRRE
ZEFEIINHIE28

TREE AR ZHM

SERAMIBERABRENZ B
o -

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
5,946 5,616

95 79

6,041 5,695

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors respectively having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015€3 831 AILFE
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 9% - RERZE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
&M
RERRE RE ok
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
FET FHET FET
COST 5N
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 /1R 589 2,046 2,635
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 52 (1) 1) @)
Additions NE 20 531 551
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 608 2,576 3,184
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, R 2 - 2 2
Additions NE 183 — 183
Disposals HE - (199) (199)
At 31 March 2015 M2015F3831H 791 2,379 3,170
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #7 & K iB{E
At 1 April 2013 ®20136 4 A1H 451 2,043 2,494
Exchange adjustments B 5, (1) 1) @)
Provided for the year REF R 53 34 87
At 31 March 2014 R201443 A31H 503 2,076 2,579
Exchange adjustments b i FH - 1 1
Provided for the year I E A 52 100 152
Eliminated on disposals A & B S — (199) (199)
At 31 March 2015 M2015F3H831H 555 1,978 2,533
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2015 M2015F3H831H 236 401 637
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3 A31H 105 500 605

The above items of property, plant and equipment are LM RIEYE BEMREIAUNESEBRELT

depreciated on a straight-line basis according to the following ZA[{FHFHFENE -

useful lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years R REREE 3E104F
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years bt 52104
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For the year ended 31 March 20156

BIFE2016F3H31 HILFE
17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY %
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
ERRRENE BRITREVE G
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FE7T
FAIR VALUE DFE
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 H 562,688 50,186 612,874
Exchange adjustments b i (30) (25) (55)
Additions NE — 28,410 28,410
Reclassification ES bR 26,013 (26,013) -
(Decrease) increase in fair value NEECKRD )M (1,118) 458 (660)
At 31 March 2014 R 201443 A31H 587,553 53,016 640,569
Exchange adjustments b i 358 119 477
Additions NE 273,629 17,990 291,619
Reclassification ES bR 70,764 (70,764) -
Decrease in fair value NEERD (7,794) (361) (8,155)
At 31 March 2015 R 201543 A31H 924,510 — 924,510
The carrying value of investment properties shown above P EIREEERESEENVR
comprises properties situated on:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Land in Hong Kong BT
Long lease REATHA 678,700 429,000
Land in the PRC £ i
Medium-term lease mEAFA 49 245,810 211,569
924,510 640,569

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment
properties in Hong Kong at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014 were arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
as at those dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”), a firm of independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. Vigers
is member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
valuation of completed investment properties in Hong Kong
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties.

201543 A31 B 201463 A31H &
SEMNREBZERKIREME A FEIER
HEASEEREHELBUABREENEM
BETTER ST E EFT B EM AR QR (B
HRZEBMETHECEEET ° Big
HARBIEMEEeeE8 - REEETHE
EMEHENLEZERBERYFTHRIE
B2 SERERE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 17. REY X (»)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group completed
the construction of certain investment properties under
development in the PRC and these properties were leased
out immediately for rental income. Hence the directors of
the Company decided to reclassify the relevant properties
amounting to RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to HK$70,764,000)
(2014: RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to HK$26,013,000)) from
investment properties under development to completed
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment
properties and investment properties under development in
the PRC at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at those
dates by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), a firm
of independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. Knight Frank is member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$8,155,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: loss of HK$660,000).
The unaudited amount of loss arising on changes in fair value
of investment properties as reported in the Company’s interim
report for the six months ended 30 September 2014 has
been significantly reduced mainly due to adoption of different
basis of valuation from direct comparison method to bare
site value for those investment properties which the Group
has obtained sufficient ownership. During the year ended
31 March 2015, a substantial portion of the loss arising on
changes in fair value of investment properties was arisen from
the investment properties acquired in that year. In determining
the purchase consideration of these properties, the Group
took into account both the existing value (i.e. existing state
and use of the properties which do not reflect the future
development potential) and the bare site value which, in
the opinion of the directors, reflect the prevailing market
conditions, the real market value and the future development
potential of the properties. In determining the fair value of
these properties at 31 March 2015, the directors (and the
independent property valuers under the instructions of the
directors) took into account the existing use value of these
properties as the Group has not yet obtained ownership of all
units of the building in which these properties are situated.
For those investment properties which the Group has obtained
ownership of all units of the buildings, bare site value of these
properties adopted.

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

NE Z2015F3A31BIEEE K& E
ERERETURPHAZEEREEY
EVCHEALEZEDEANRRES
WA Flt " RRREEREETHOHEEE
A AR 57,000,000 7T (1857 70,764,000
#7r)(2014 : AR# 21,000,000 7T (57
26,013,000 L)) 2N EBREEHEE
MEZBTRITENE -

REER 201543 A31 H %2014 53 A 31
AZHRBEEERIRENERERTRENE
ZAFEDRERAEBSAMEZBIAE
REEYEGEMITRG A MITERAQR
(IR R ZSAPETHEZEEET -
My aESIEMEees o

HZE2015F3A31BILFEZRENME L
AN A& B 188,155,000 T (2014 4 ¢
&1 660,000 78 7T ) E MBS HER o AR R
EREBEREECNBERRZREMEZN
Bz P RGEEERERY B AT RS
EWREE HZE2014F9H30H L/~ E
AZARRRHREFSRZAKELERE
MEZRNTEEHEESEANBRD - BRE
Z2015F3 A3 BILFE  REMEZA
TEEHEBEABORARZFRBAZE
EYE FETHEMEZEAER A%
BRKZEIREEAERSE RBRKRER
BNZOERRARER) REZRAEREY
EBEMR EEMERARERBENZSE
BHBREE EETHEMER2015F3 A
31AZATER  HRAEBTRESIE
MENMEBEYM BB HERE &
E(REEERERZBIMEGLEMNREZE
HEWEZRE HRCESHSEWENRE
CREWMZMABNERE  HEWESR
BB REE -

AREMARKRLHABRTRRES 2L
BOBSE AR FEREAGFERDBARE
ESTER
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For the year ended 31 March 20156

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

17. REWZE #)

TRINBEREERENENRAFEIER
(BRIRFMERZEEDERBABE) - K
EREBEGABEBZABREEEDNAFE
FR(F1EFIR) 2 AFEFE -

Investment Valuation Significant
properties held Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
by the Group 31 March 2015 hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
R20156
rREREL 3A31H RERER EXTABE
REmx ZAYE NHEZR TERARE BARE $RE
HK$'000
AT
Commercial units in 678,700 Level 3  Direct comparison 1. Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong method — based on using market direct square foot, the higher
£3%  market observable comparables and taking  the fair value.
REBZ BEENL transactions of similar into account of location
properties and adjusted and other individual §YLRERAR -
to reflect the locations factors such as AYERR
and conditions of the road frontage, size
subject property of property etc.,
which is ranged from
ERUEE - ERFEENE  HK$102,381 to
LTGAEERS  DEHE  HK$361,143 per
NRBEENELMERER  square foot.
RATSERITHRRER
fir & b\ R EAt fEIRI B Z {4 0
RUER MEANNEZE
THREE  §TARNT
102,381 AL 361,143 7T
Completed properties 245,810 Level 3 Income capitalisation 1. Capitalisation rate, The higher the
in the PRC of net income with provisions ~ which is 4.6% capitalisation rate, the
F34  for reversionary income per annum. lower the fair value.
R B E potential

LONGE REPA ON-UN (@3
THBAENG RERE

BAMLE  BER46%

2. Market monthly rental
rate, which is RMB12.13
per square metre.

nEEARE  SYIXE TREEARERS

ARBA12137

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

17. REWE #)

Investment Valuation Significant
properties held Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
by the Group 31 March 2014  hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
B2014F
TEEFAZ 3A31A hER AR EXTIBE
RENZ ZAYE NHEZR TERAUE BAHE HRE
HK$'000
TET
Commercial units 429,000 Level 3  Direct comparison 1. Price per square foot, The higher the price per
in Hong Kong method — based on using market direct square foot, the higher the
F34%  market observable comparables and taking  fair value.
REBZ BFEN transactions of similar into account of location
properties and adjusted and other individual §YLRERRR  ATE
to reflect the locations factors such as road s
and conditions of the frontage, size of property
subject property etc., which is ranged
from HK$15,139 to
BRNEE - EREEMEZ  HK$381,356 per square
MEIBRRS ]WNW& foot.
BRERWEZUERER
RAMSEZAILRRE R
ENREMERNRZMELE
B WENNEZEIHRE
f 8¥ARNT15,13978
TL2 381,356 87T
Completed properties 158,553 Level 3  Income capitalisation of 1. Capitalisation rate, which The higher the capitalisation
in the PRC net income with provisions is 8.5% per annum. rate, the lower the fair value.
F34  for reversionary income
RABZERRIR potential BREE - BFER8S5%  AALEAR - ATERR
WAFEFEZMABARIE 2. Market monthly rental  The higher the market
WA E NG REE rate, which is RMB13.9  monthly rental rate, the
per square metre. higher the fair value.
maEARE  8YAK  TREBAREARR ATERAR
AARB13.9T
Properties under 53,016 Level 3  Residual method — based 1. Capitalisation rate, which The higher the capitalisation

development
in the PRC

RPEZERTIE

on income capitalisation

of net income and taken into
account the construction
costs that will be spent

ERE

to complete the 2.

development

BMEE - ERNRAREGE
ZRAB R AL AT
BRAF CRERA

is 8.5% per annum.
EXL®  §ERB8.5%

Market monthly rental
rate, which is RMB13.9
per square metre.

TEEARE - STHK
ABARE139T

. Construction costs,
which is RMB1,074
per square metre.
ARE1,074 7

KEE

rate, the lower the fair value.
EAcxan  ATERR

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value.

misgARERS - A

The higher the construction
costs, the lower the fair value.

EXEEHMBRAT 2014/15 FR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156

BZ201563 831 HIEFE
18. LOANS RECEIVABLE 18. EWE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unsecured il
— guaranteed by outside parties and - HE=HERK
bearing interest at a fixed rate of REEFSES%E
5% per annum 8,640 7,500
— bearing interest at a fixed rate of - REEFEX5%:TE
5% per annum 15,000 10,000
23,640 17,500
Less: Amount due from borrowers B BTIRRBEEL
repayable within one year shown —ERIHEREL
under current assets WG TR A £ 58 (12,140) (17,500)
Amount due from borrowers repayable BTRRIERBEEZ —F& 5 H
after one year shown under non-current  EEZERERALHE
assets 11,500 -

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality with reference to
financial background and creditability of individual borrowers,
subsequent settlement and payment history of the borrowers.
No loans receivable is past due at the end of the reporting
period.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional
currency of the relevant group entity, at the end of the
reporting period.

ERERRERREERZEEERNES
EEBERAZHBERRESE - GHAH
KBRRMERAZBEEETLE  BRR
FRBLAECEKRERABERHEEE
o RBEHRLECBREKREN -

ARKERRBSHRIUEASEER
YR EEETIE -

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. I HERE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in EHMEREELTZ
Hong Kong at market value f R 5 17,152 16,139

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 20.#3{EHEXREME
FOR SALE

The movement of properties held for development for sale for AEERELERRMEZEHOT :
the year is as follows:

HK$’000
T8

At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 /18 =
Additions NE 560,914
At 31 March 2015 20153 A31H 560,914
At 31 March 2015, the whole amount of properties held for R20154F3A31 8 ABEHNESRAE
development for sale is included in the Group’s current assets EMERRETSEBEHANEN - FELH
in the consolidated statement of financial position as it is ERRMEI 2L AN ZAMBRARY
expected that the properties will be realised in the Group’s EREBZRBEE -
normal operating cycle for properties development.
At 31 March 2015, the Group performed impairment R2015F3A310  REBEERBFELR
assessment on its properties held for development to assess MEETRE S 2ZHAEELE @@
their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations made BN A BERBEEYEMEMTZ(EENF
by independent qualified professional property valuers not BEAWEEEE - ZEHEDNEEREES
connected to the Group. The valuations were arriving at by e AREBSEERYEZIRRESESRA
using the residual method. As the recoverable amounts of the RBEMRREE  RRRIEERA/ZE

properties held for development are higher than their carrying M EERE o
amounts as at the end of the reporting period, the directors of

the Company are of the opinion that no impairment on these

properties is considered necessary.

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £,
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 5 KR
W R

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Prepayments BRI
Deposits paid to suppliers to be
realised within one year HEFEZRE
Interest receivables FEHAI B
Other receivables H fth FE U R IE

BR—FABR T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

21. B 5 R A At B RIA

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
7,455 6,803
7,455 6,803
564 1,357
2,000 343
134 414

667 790
10,820 9,707

The Group allows an average credit period of up to 90 days to
its customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based
on the invoice date which approximate revenue recognition
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 — 60 days 0-60H
61 — 90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days #3890 H

AEEGETERPZFOREREIWHA - 1R
BROKSBARRCERAH BHRENK

FIRRME MR ZREANHT

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FAT

7,009 6,593

236 143

210 67

7,455 6,803

The management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade and other receivables and considers trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of
good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$922,000
(2014: HK$937,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for allowance. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EEERREREHNEMRURELEE
BEXRRARBRYNBECE S NEME

BFERBRIFEEER -

RBREBH AEBE2E 5 EWHEL S
o BREEA £4922,0008 7T (2014 4 ¢

937,000 T) BEBHER

AHREME - A

SEYVLRARASERFATMER -

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

21.

22,

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days EB#H1E60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days EiEH61ZE90H
Overdue by over 90 days ERAHEE0 A

1. EZRHMERTE )

BRMEAREY B 5 EERE BRI
mF :

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
476 727

236 143

210 67

922 937

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as
a result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

USsD e
RMB AR

AREREEERLR  BHZEHERKFEA
—RRE A AUE - Bt - RFEHR - L8
AR EE SR KF ORI -

AEENEBEBERNAEEE NI ZEE
SEZ RS REMELGRREIIMT

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
4,583 5,271

3 2

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2015, the bills receivable are aged within 60 days
and are denominated in USD.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which
are based on the quoted market bid prices on the Stock
Exchange.

22. EWEE

R2015%F3 A31H - BRERE 2Kk A60
HANMAETIIE -

23. HFEERE

REEEREBERBEE LD ZEFLRR
BXMzhH LBz B2 A FEZT -

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS

25

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

The Group redeemed unlisted bond investments with a
financial institution in Hong Kong during the year. The bond
investments contained embedded derivative, the interest rate
of which was determined with reference to the exchange
rate of USD against RMB and ranges from 0.3% to 4.5% per
annum. The embedded derivative was considered closely
related to the respective host contracts as it would not double
the Group’s initial return on the host contract when comparing
to the host contract without embedded derivative. Therefore
it had not been accounted for separately in the consolidated
financial statements of prior year.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging
from 0.001% to 4.8% (2014: 0.001% to 5.0%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.
As at 31 March 2015, the Group placed time deposits,
amounting to approximately RMB48,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$59,606,000) (2014: RMB60,300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$74,693,000)), with a financial
institution in the PRC with original maturity of three months.
The time deposits contain embedded derivative, the interest
rate of which is determined with reference to the exchange
rate of USD against HKD and ranges from 2.8% to 4.8%
(2014: 3.3% to 5.0%) per annum. The embedded derivative is
considered closely related to the host contract as it would not
double the Group’s initial return on the host contract when
comparing to the host contract without embedded derivative.
Therefore it has not been accounted for separately in the
consolidated financial statements and is included in “bank
balances and cash” as at 31 March 2015.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

HKD BT
RMB AR
USsD I

24 BRAFEFABBCEHEE

25

FARKERNEE—HeBRBERLIELD
EHFRE - ZEFRERSINBITERA -
BRIZEENZ2EXITAARBZABER
FHEAR0.3%E4.5% ° LBORARNBITE
BEZEIBAH AN TENEARERE
BEWZKEH  AETERBRAAE
HIBANAZZEE - AtYRANBHE
FENGREMBRRABULK -

BITERRAE

AEBREBZRITEHRRRSAERETH
IBEFIRTE0.001% = 4.8% 2 [E(2014 F :
0.001% £5.0% )z =@ Ak 2Bz &
HASRITIE AN

AehERR[RERASRBITES - 1
2015F3A31H A5EBE-—BFEHE
B E A7 A K ¥ 448,000,000 7T (# &
7 4959,606,0007% Jr )(2014F : AR %
60,300,000 7T (8% 12 4774,693,000 7% 7T ) )
Z=ERIHBzEHER THEREE
EOTHETEE  BRIZETNZEXZTAET
ZABERERNEH2.8%ZF4.8% (2014
F:33%%E5.0%)  LELEANEITER
BZEBEH ARTEMEASEREE
BRZMARER  AETEEE KR ARE
IRANEERHE - ALTERERENE
HERANBILLERE BER201543 A 31
BZ[RITEHRRES R -

AEENEREEERNEEEUN 2 EE
NEZRITEHRIRESENMT -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
28 28
29,397 13
11,301 14,135
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BIFZ2016F 331 HILFE
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. 5 R H B RRIE
The aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice REXZHE  BZEAFERREHRARZ
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRE DT ¢
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Trade payables: B2 ENIE
0 — 60 days 0-60H 2,805 2,049
Over 90 days #3890 H 145 -
2,950 2,049
Construction costs payable ENpEE JEN 3,933 7,308
Rental deposits received and Bl eke REKES
rental received in advance 8,211 5,009
Accruals TaIRE R 5,374 4,249
Other taxes payable HAth eI H 18 4,822 4,454
Other payables Hfth [l 1< 5038 982 227
26,272 23,296
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. BE 7 PHREEEA30H
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated AREBUEBEEERIGEEE L2 B
in currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant YVWEZE S REMERFIELRT :
group entities are set out below:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
usD ETT 19 43

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £, 125
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For the year ended 31 March 20156

BE20153 531 HILFE
27.SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27. B R AEBTREE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable: FEBEFIE 2 AR E(E ¢
— within one year - —FR 146,140 6,973
— between one to two years - —EMEF 7,353 7,157
— between two to five years - MERF 23,295 22,709
— more than five years — BBAF 117,137 125,063
293,925 161,902
Less: Amount due within one year shown & - RABEBEE N2 —FER
under current liabilities FHES (146,140) (6,973)
Amount due after one year N—EF %Az o5 147,785 154,929

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carried interest at HIBOR plus 2.5%, with effective interest
ranging from 2.66% to 2.73% per annum (2014: 2.71%
to 2.72% per annum), and are repayable by 240 monthly
instalments. The loans are secured by investment properties
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$377,000,000 (2014: HK$372,000,000) and
properties held for development for sale of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately HK$336,027,000 (2014: Nil).
The proceeds were used to finance acquisition of investment
properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the
reporting period.

R201543 A31 8 "&EBz GHEMET
BEBRXRABBETREREM25%Z
FFE EEBRFHNEH2.66%£2.73%
(20144 : ERFE27T1% E2.72%) * B H
0B AME - ERUAEEZREME
BRE (A A& #£49377,000,0005% 7T (2014 £ :
372,000,0008 7T) RFEH EHEVHERR
B4 #£49336,027,00078 7T (2014 & « ) {E
AR - FERAERBREDEZBE -

RBREPRZAAERTEEDNRBAEEE
B2NEEERETIIE -
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BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE CONTAINING

28%@ REBESEERER
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS 7

On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible note
due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000
to Easyknit International.

The convertible note is denominated in HKD. The note entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time between the date of issue of the convertible note on
27 March 2014 and its settlement date on 27 March 2019 at
a conversion price of HK$0.68 per conversion share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments). Assuming full conversion of the
convertible note at a conversion price of HK$0.68 at the date
of issue of the note, the convertible note will be convertible
into 147,058,823 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company.

The conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. If the convertible note is
not converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 2% per annum will
be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The convertible note contains two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity component is presented in equity
heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 12.72% per annum
at the date of initial recognition.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
note is set out below:

R201453 278 KRR NAKRE £%8
100,000,000,% 7L 2174 2019 F | #3 2 2%
AR ER TRkEBRK o

AEEEEABTIE  BEFEATNUE
Hx?ﬁﬁx 70.68B L2 RILE(RER%HE
AENE) R2014FE3H8278 2 /[ R
%ﬁ%%ﬁaézmgisﬁzmzfiﬂéaﬁﬂ
Mz R RRZEREAQRZE
B o RBIABRO068BTZ HIAE B/\
ERHTEEEALBTEARER  JBRE
BAiBAERA ﬂiﬂ&%‘e@@o.m%ﬁz
147,058,823 % 3 3% 8 A% A% 1

PTIE SRR BC % B AT AR AD © ™)
BERERAAPEEHEIRA RS
Rl E J,E;@Hum@@@ﬂﬁ*?iﬁzaﬁ
RASHEE - FEX2% 2 MBERAELEFX
ATERIS - é%iﬁﬁﬁﬂt

T?ﬁ BREESEMERD  NaEREREK
o B D E\JWEH%HQK%E%\ fEEl 2
B BERORVBHEREZERAES
FRERE12.72% °

U/

ARERBAERD ZEBEIIMT

HK$’000
FET

Carrying amount upon issue of the convertible RERBTITRBEER 2 REEE
note during the year 53,955
Interest charge FEFRX 92
Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 R2014F3 A31 B ZERAE 54,047
Conversion during the year RER IR (43,401)
Accretion of interest FEzBREE 1,430
Interest paid EARENESN (923)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 R201543 A31 B ZEKHEE 11,153

AEEXEEARDT 2014/15 Fi)
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BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

29. JE SR E

REARBEFECRA/TIEZELEHEA
BEAREZEHMT :

Revaluation of Convertible
properties note Total
MEE AHRREE oG]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT FET FE7T
At 1 April 2013 R 201344 A1H (12,870) - (12,870)
Recognition upon issue of BT R E R
convertible note — (7,597) (7,597)
Credit to profit or loss for RAFEREHFA
the year 200 11 211
Exchange adjustments b 5% 2 - 2
At 31 March 2014 R 201443 A31H (12,668) (7,586) (20,254)
Release upon issue of BT RREERRRER
convertible note — 6,039 6,039
Charge to profit or loss for the — WAFEEZBREFHK
year (3,944) (88) (4,032)
Exchange adjustments (ERAEE (30) — (30)
At 31 March 2015 R 201543 A31H (16,642) (1,635) (18,277)

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$94,304,000 (2014: HK$75,753,000) available
for offset against future profits. The Hong Kong tax losses of
approximately HK$73,802,000 (2014: HK$57,199,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining tax losses will
expire from 2015 to 2019 (2014: 2015 to 2017). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unrecognised
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

R2015F3A31H K"N&E B H X8 H
Bt 1B B 18 4994,304,0005 7T(20144F :
75,753,000/ 7T ) + A] BIEHSH AR RR A o
& 75 7B 18 4973,802,0007% JT(2014
57,199,0005 7T ) o] B[R B A5 82 - H R Fi0E
RN 2015 E £ 20194 (2014 £ : 2015
FE2017F )5 H - R KRAETE AR K S F
WA BIDRE AR ERRBEEERERE
BREHBEE -

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

At 1 April 2013
Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in new consolidated

shares

At 31 March 2014

Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in consolidated shares

Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in consolidated shares

At 31 March 2015

EE

1R2013%F4 A1H

Bira bt

IARIR:

HMAaptRmEm

201453 A31H

Bth & b

BAHIR

AGREEN

KR

AR

R2015F3 A31H

30. A&
Nominal
value per Number

Notes share of shares Amount
i3 SREE REGHE am
HK$ HK$’000

BT FET

0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

() (19,500,000,000) -
0.40 500,000,000 200,000

(c) - (195,000)
0.01 500,000,000 5,000

(c) 0.01 19,500,000,000 195,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

(i) (18,000,000,000) -
0.10 2,000,000,000 200,000

(i) - (180,000)
0.01 2,000,000,000 20,000

(i) 0.01 18,000,000,000 180,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

(k) (19,000,000,000) —
0.20 1,000,000,000 200,000

(k) - (190,000)
0.01 1,000,000,000 10,000

(k) 0.01 19,000,000,000 190,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £,

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR
At 1 April 2013 20134 A1H
Rights issue of shares 3G

Issue of new shares TR EIT

Consolidation of shares and BRREHK
reduction to share capital IRAEI A

Rights issue of shares AR AR A7

At 31 March 2014 12014463 A31H

Conversion of convertible note ~ HATREEE
Issue of new shares MRHET
Issue of new shares TR
Conversion of convertible note  RIAFHBRER
Consolidation of shares and BROAHR
reduction of share capital BRAREIR
Rights issue of shares I
Consolidation of shares and BRIAEHK
reduction of share capital RAER

At 31 March 2015

7201553 A31 R

30. A< (&)
Nominal
value per Number
Notes share of shares Amount
Mz SREE REGEE nE
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
411,941,500 4,119
(@) 0.01 1,235,824,500 12,358
(b) 0.01 329,540,000 3,296
1,977,306,000 19,773
(c) (1,927,873,350) (19,279)
0.01 49,432,650 494
(d) 0.01 247,163,250 2,472
296,595,900 2,966
(e) 0.01 29,411,764 294
(" 0.01 65,200,000 652
() 0.01 78,000,000 780
(h) 0.01 93,457,943 935
562,665,607 5,627
(i) (506,399,048) (5,064)
0.01 56,266,559 563
() 0.01 450,132,472 4,501
506,399,031 5,064
(k) (481,079,080) (4,811)
0.01 25,319,951 253

(@)

working capital of the Group.

On 19 June 2013, the Company allotted 1,235,824,500
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per rights share on the basis of three rights
shares for every one then existing ordinary share held.
The Company raised HK$122,885,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of rights issue to finance
potential property investments and serve as general
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

On 24 September 2013, the Company allotted
329,540,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by
placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.063 per share. The Company raised HK$20,554,000
(net of expenses) with the intention at the time of placing
to serve as general working capital of the Group. The
new placing shares were issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of
the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual
general meeting held on 2 August 2013. Further details of
this placing of new shares are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 September 2013 and 24
September 2013.

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 19 November 2013, as a result of
which (i) every forty issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.40 each; (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01; (iii) increase of the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$5,000,000 divided
into 500,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each; and (iv) issued and fully
paid share capital was changed from HK$19,773,000
comprising 1,977,306,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$494,000 comprising 49,432,650 shares of HK$0.01
each.

After completion of the capital reorganisation as set
out in (c) and on 13 December 2013, the Company
allotted 247,163,250 rights shares of HK$0.01 each at
a subscription price of HK$0.60 per rights share on the
basis of five rights shares for every one then existing
share held. The Company raised HK$147,346,000 (net of
expenses) with the intention at the time of rights issue
to finance the property investments and other potential
business opportunity.

30. K& #)

(b)

M2013F9 A24 B - KD EIAFRE
%12 0.063 8 7L Bt & 329,540,000 it &
BR0.01B Tz EBBEBRMD FALRA
ZHEBLA o AN EE1520,554,0008
TNBRFEYR) ERTEEALE
By REBEES - FRERNM IR
2013F8A2HFREFASLAB
ZBRREAZGETERE L —BRITEET
MREEZE—FFRBELHRAAA
201394118 K201349 A24H
/N i

ARBBETRAEER  ESRBE
BERTRABITROEH  BER
Rz AHKROEEZHER  EAERAN
ZEERGEEZEIREENETE
B Ao Bg AN & A R2013F11 A19
BED EMOHEFEN+HREEHTR
ABTEBRONBTERRERM
A A—RETNK0.408 T2 A HIR
s (NEIREBERAARRAZEE
H0.408 7T HI B £0.0178 7T ¢ (iii) &
A 7] Z & TE M 75 F 5,000,000 %8 7T 5
/500,000,000 % & A% @ E0.01 7% T
2 B% {7 1% 0 = 200,000,000 & 7T 2 A
20,000,000,000 % & % ™ E£0.01/5
TR R(v)B T B EKRAR
19,773,000/ Jt & & 1,977,306,000
W& 0.01 78 T 2 B 10 5 = 494,000
78 7T B 2 49,432,650 fX & % 0.01 75 7T
i

WM(c)BATE 2 WA EMATH B KR
2013%F 128138 A R Al & & #
B-RERRAROERRRERR
oz B LE R 4R R % 0.60%8
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(e

On 3 April 2014, convertible note with a principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 were converted in shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.68
per share. Accordingly, a total of 29,411,764 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

On 18 June 2014, the Company allotted 65,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.35 per share. The
Company raised HK$22,500,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used
for the general working capital of the Group. The new
placing shares were issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 20 May 2014.

On 22 August 2014, the Company allotted 78,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.30 per share. The
Company raised HK$23,100,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used
for the general working capital of the Group. The new
placing shares were issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 7 August 2014.

On 29 August 2014, convertible note with a principal
amount of HK$60,000,000 were converted in shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price of
HK$0.642 per share. Accordingly, a total of 93,457,943
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and
issued by conversion of the convertible note.

30. BA&#)

(e)
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(i)

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 21 October 2014, as a result of
which (i) every ten issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each; (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (iii) increase of the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each; and (iv) issued and fully
paid share capital was changed from HK$5,627,000
comprising 562,665,607 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$563,000 comprising 56,266,559 shares of HK$0.01
each.

On 14 November 2014, the Company allotted
450,132,472 rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.70 per rights share on the
basis of eight rights shares for every one then existing
ordinary share held. The Company raised approximately
HK$313,225,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of rights issue to finance potential property
investments.

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 25 March 2015, as a result of
which (i) every twenty issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.20 each; (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.20 to HK$0.01; (iii) increase of the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each; and (iv) issued and fully
paid share capital was changed from HK$5,064,000
comprising 506,399,031 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$253,000 comprising 25,319,951 shares of HK$0.01
each.

30. K& #)

(i)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The 2012 Share Option Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of the Company. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may, at its
absolute discretion, offer options to any full-time employee,
director or consultant of any member of the Group (including
associated companies) to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during
the period of 10 years commencing 29 June 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate
with any shares to be issued under any other share option
schemes of the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the
Company with such grantee and his associate(s) abstaining
from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme is determined by the board of directors of
the Company and shall end on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the time
of grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and
(b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board
of directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and
notified to each offeree but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business dayj;
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during both years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

REME
BIEREERME

Investment properties
Properties held for development for sale

31

32.

B ERTEl )
2012 B REETEI(Z)

ARBESEAREBHEIGE - BE2012
BEET S R TR ZITEE I
HNERRBEOA  BBTEENEIR(I)
REXNBR(LAREXR)RBRMeEH
REXRMIARABORBR A2 KWTE
(WERBHOEMAMAEZER  RBXMZ
B RMERTFIAR R KBS 2 F15
W E: AR ARARNRENRR
HERRSERE) o

R E S E A ERE2012BRE 2K
RBRRE RN RITEE °

EEAH

RMERKR  AERBER T -HERTERLY
TASEEEERZEENT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
377,000 372,000
336,027 =
713,027 372,000
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement dated 5 September
2014 entered into between Easyknit Properties Holdings
Limited (a fellow subsidiary of Easyknit International) and the
Company for an aggregate consideration of HK$340,000,000.
The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed which were
recognised on 21 November 2014, the date of acquisition, are
as follows:
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33. (BB K B 4 A

1R & Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited
CkEBEBEZHBAR)RARNRGZAEHA
2014F9ASHZ IR REBEHZ  BRER
340,000,000 7T - W BB IT B 22 B Jo A W B
AN o

RUREE 2014511 A21 BEBR 2 KE
BERAEAEMT :

HK$°000
T8
Properties held for development for sale FIELERRME 332,758
Prepayments for acquisition of properties held WEE{EHERRYE
for development for sale A CUNE 7,123
Deposits and prepayments Be REMK 75
Bank balances and cash RITEHREBE 69
Accruals BIRFIA (25)
Net assets assumed BEAEFTE 340,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: Wi 2R &ML FRE
Consideration paid TRRE (340,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WERe RERRE 69
(339,931)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair
value of the receivables acquired (which principally
comprised prepayments for acquisition of properties held
for development for sale and deposits and prepayments)
approximate to the gross contractual amounts, the best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows of
the receivables which are expected to be collected.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$505,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in the
current year within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ARRIZEBERR  WEEKRA(ERER
WBRERERRNEZENREZERTE
N2 A FEEEAENSRBL - DARN
WiE BB E 2 BAFEZAHRER
B REMGT -

Y BB AE A X A< 49 505,000 8 T I B AEFE K
BARERAFEEE B MAM2E K
FAZTRAX AR ERRBFAX
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33.

34.

ACQU'S'T'ON OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 21 November 2014,
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$192,489,000, and the profit for the year would have been
HK$35,118,000.

The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 21 November
2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised in FARB=FER
profit or loss during the year ZEEHESMAK

33. WIEFI B ARl (#)

BEWER2014F 11 A21 HERK - AEBE
¥ %4192,489,000 # 7T R AR F % M 5 41
35,118,000 &L, °

BEERMEESPRRE T ARERDUEE
R2014F 11 A21 BRI BERER 2 A%
B2EBERESE W TNEREBIRKRES -

4. BEHOLH
FEBEEREEA
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
2,627 2,606

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBERR > AKERATFHIE 2 A
%ﬁ(%ﬁ]i‘«MZ‘E”]Z%PKE%EW‘Eﬂ‘TmZ?%%

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Within one year —&R 1,084 2,543
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRAF(BEEERT) - 1,084
1,084 3,627

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for lease terms ranging of one year (2014: from one to two
years).

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments.

REBMONREAREZE ?#ﬂ#"ﬁ%%z
ENES - BOZEHR—F(20145 :
EME)

REASEFTZ 2B BENRBEE R
WERT S S AE S RLHE
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. BERNRH @)

(continued)

The Group as lessor KEBERBEAA
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Property rental income earned during the FARRzMERS
year WA 19,256 13,927
Less: Outgoings R X (237) (169)
Net rental income e WA FE 19,019 13,758
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBEK  AEFHEBLFT LU TRRE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: R AR
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 16,861 13,094
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFEhF(BEERMTE) 29,835 11,303
Over five years HiRHF 9,627 3,433
56,323 27,830
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease TM%K%ETIZ%Eé@;$ﬂ%@1¢%£?%E&
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered ﬂﬁﬂiﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm cRAENFEZE
into for contingent rental payments. The properties held have BNHEFZHOAH—ELF(20145F : —
committed tenants for terms of one to seven years (2014: one EtF)-
to seven years).
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EXEE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not & FT4I{E 1 R 4R & B 7%
provided in the consolidated financial mEP R BARX
statements in respect of investment TR B
properties 764 14,311
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 36. B K B A= &

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age of
65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which
have been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income were as follows:

Employers’ contributions recognised
in profit or loss

RIBEE P AR 2 B N

REERBEEBRHMATEL 2GR - &
VRTEHFEHEATEL ERBR (%R
BestaEll) - RBRELHET EEEAR
BEAFS A% %% A1,5008 T
EEWAEEEHEIMER - BEFAHK
AREEZEBRHSEEISNRRE A
1,500 7 ([ IR ]) - [ B R 655
KB AT R T2 RRTAENRE  IZF
BERFIEE-KZ100% °

RPBZHBAR 2 EERTERNRLL
BREERASTEKE - HEBLRRARE
SRTAEDLAERAKEEIHER - AEEZ
BEEEARRASIEELAMRE 2 HH -

AERWRARWHERA BIEHHEE M
HoBERGABREREMEEKERTRE
ZEEHFWOT

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
439 415

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years.

R#|EHRR - WL LZWEKA BAERER
REFZBMNERK
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37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

7. TEMBARZHE

7201593 A31 H&2014F3A31H » &
REIEZHBRAIZEFBMOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held:
BERE -

Land Bloom Holdings
Limited
REZERERAF

Indirectly held:
FIRFE -

Chancemore Limited

City China International
Limited
A ERERAR

Clever Wise Holdings
Limited
BEZERER AR

Easy Garment
International Limited

KERKERERA ]

Easyknit Worldwide
Company Limited

Gainever Corporation
Limited
KEEBRAF

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

SRR,/
RAREE DR

British Virgin Islands
(“BVI")/Hong Kong
KBRS/ B

BVI/Hong Kong
EREAHR/BE

Hong Kong
BB

BVI/Hong Kong
ERENES/BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up

registered
capital/stated
capital

ERTRA/
HBREAMBRE
BHRAEE

Ordinary US$1
TRR1ET

Ordinary US$1
TRR1ET
Ordinary HK$1
LER1BT

Ordinary US$1
TERk1ET

Ordinary HK$1
LAER1AT

Ordinary HK$2
L2 AT

Ordinary HK$2
LEk2ET

Proportion
of nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up
registered capital held
by the Company

APAEE

ERITRE/
HBREAMBRE

AEESH
2015 2014
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report

Principal activity

FEXK

Property development

NEZR

Property investment

WERE
Loan financing

BERRE

Property investment

NERE

Trading of garments

KKEE
Trading of garments
KKEE

Investment in securities

BHEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

Nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up

7. TEMB AR ZFHE®

Proportion
of nominal value
of issued share

incorporation/ registered capital/paid-up
establishment capital/stated registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation capital by the Company Principal activity
ADEEHE
BERITRE/ BRITREA/
MBI, BEEMBRA BREMBRA/
L PNEEE RURKE S BHRAEE EEAEAL TEER
2015 2014
Main Lucky Enterprises  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
Limited BB L@k NERE
HRCFARAR
Top Channel Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
Limited BB ERR1BT NERE
mEREERAR
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% - Property development
EBRLES/BR Rt (note) MERE
(Hat)
XEEECHM)BERAR  PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
(TAMEZ]) h US$25,544,206 NERE
(Easyknit Enterprises A AR AR
(Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) 25,544,206 37T
(“Enterprises Huzhou")*
* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise - AMEZER—BRPBEKILZINER
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 Bih¥ KEHAS0E  EE20544F
December 2054, 12H148 -

Note: This is a newly acquired subsidiary in current year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.

W WDAFEHREZMEAR -

BREARRESTZER - ERAIIRZAR
AMBAR REEFEAFELXELE
RAEEEETEN D - REAAFAESZ
BERIGEMMBARZFRAGEERB
RILEK

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

37.

38.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal
Principal activity place of business
TEEK TEEENH
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER BE
Inactive Hong Kong
JEE R BB
Inactive PRC
JEVE R H

37.

FTEMB AR ZFHE®

RBEHER  ARRHEEMHAEET =
VAREEZHWBAR - WEMBARKID
DIRBEBLE - WENBARIZ EBEKH
WO

Number of subsidiaries

MEBAREE

2015 2014
8 7
4 5
2 2
14 14

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2015 or 31 March 2014.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
March 2015:

() On 18 March 2015, the Group entered into ten sets of
provisional agreements with independent third parties
to acquire investment properties in Hong Kong for
an aggregate consideration of HK$183,000,000. The
acquisition was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting held on 11 May
2015 and the transactions have been completed up
to the report date. Details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated on 19 March 2015.

(i) On 26 May 2015, the Group entered into a facility
letter with an independent third party to lend upto
HK$70,000,000 for a period of 12 months from the
drawdown date. The borrower shall pay interest to
the lender on the loan at the rate of 8% per annum.
The loan is secured by the share charge and personal
guarantee. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated on 26 May 2015.

38.

RAEMBARR2015%F3 A31 Hek 20144
3 B 31 BETEMEKES o

REHRBREAREE
AT 420153 A31 B&% 4 v EAEIE :

(i) M2015F3718H @ A & E H 35 7
E=FEIL T BREGZE  NERE
183,000,000 B LB R BB 2K E
ME o WEBEMN2015F5 8 11 B 817
2RSS FESAD B RELE
WERHEBEAIENK - BHAFB
MARRAIBEA2015F3 8198 22
ﬁfﬁo

(i) R2015F5H26H AEEHEEB L
ZHAIVREBEERBNZ REMEH
%70,000,00058 7T © AIEEH B8 st
BE12EA - BRABEEF8% 2
NERERMERAZASFE « BEFHA
MR #a RAE A ERIERIER - B
BERAATIBEA201555H26H
/N i

laray
Ed
53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE2015F3 31 HILFE

38. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(i)

On 29 May 2015, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement in respect of the issue of and subscription
for convertible note in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$86,000,000 with an independent third party.

Assuming full conversion of the convertible note at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per share, a total
of 101,176,470 new shares will be allotted and issued,
representing (i) approximately 19.03% of the issued
share capital of the Company on 29 May 2015; and (ii)
approximately 15.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
conversion shares.

Upon the full exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the convertible note, there will have the effect of
diluting all existing the Group’s shareholders’ percentage
shareholdings in the Group. So far as Easyknit
International is concerned, its percentage share of
the issued share capital of the Group will be diluted
approximately from 40.96% to approximately 34.41%.

Pursuant to Rule 14.31 of the Listing Rules, the Group
will no longer be a subsidiary of Easyknit International
and its financial position and results will not be
consolidated into those of Easyknit International. The
Group will be accounted for an associate of Easyknit
International. Details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated on 29 May 2015.

3. REMRERERETE #)

(i)

R2015F5 290 "REBHEB T
E=FRETCERIBBELASLEAR
86,000,000 78 7t /) A #2 ik =15 5] 2 3R
Bz o

BREVNFABESRER0.858 T
BERRTHKREE e Rz
76 101,176,470 BRFTILRL (D + 4BE
R ()RR RIR201555 A29 B B #17
I AR £719.03% [ (i) A& 2 A) 4% B 2%
KRBT RO ERE 2 EBEITRAL
15.99% o

REBETEAMEREENSE 2 L BE
& BUHERBEASERERNAEE
ZERASLBEREEYE - HikxEH
BmE EAWAEEERTREAED
b5 R 4740.96% #5EE4734.41% o

R FTRBE14.31 1 REEBEHT
BAKEEBRZHEA R REHBRR
N EBE BT RKE B 2 R &
EEREAAR - AEE G ARY AKX
EZBBR 2B LT - BAFRIHNAR
alBEIA2015F5 A 29 B2 Aff o
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OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 20156
BZE2015F3H31 HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. AR A Z MR R &K

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FETT

Non-current asset EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN Fa 1,183,526 545,761

Current assets HRBEE
Other receivables H o e kIR 204 473
Bank balances RITHEER 97,694 495,909
97,898 496,382
Current liability TEAE

Other payables H {th JE 4 5178 2,712 2,063
Net current assets REEEFE 95,186 494,319
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 1,278,712 1,040,080

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible note RRER 11,153 54,047
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 1,636 7,586
12,789 61,633
1,265,923 978,447

Capital and reserves BR R
Share capital RN 253 2,966
Reserves (note) HE (B ) 1,265,670 975,481
1,265,923 978,447

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited

2014/15 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015F 3831 HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COM PANY(continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior

years are as follows:

At 1 April 2013

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable
to issue of new shares

Reduction of share
capital upon capital
reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus
against accumulated
losses

Recognition of equity
component of convertible
note

Deferred tax liability on
recognition of equity
component of convertible
note

At 31 March 2014

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable
to issue of new shares

Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible note

Reduction of share
capital upon capital
reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus
against accumulated
losses

Deferred tax liability on
recognition of equity
component of convertible
note

At 31 March 2015

R2013%4 A1H

AEE2AMY
ok

BITHBRG

BOHRDZR 5
A

RS 7 IR
CVzs

NEABHEH
2EtER

EEES v i
P 2R

RUBBRE
BN 2 BT
BARR

20143 431 H

AEEZAMY
28

ARG

BIHRH 225
XA

FEMRRRER
ki

BRAEAR 2 KA
HIAL

NEABHEH
2iER

R BRER
ERN D ZIBIE
RIRAE

720153 431 H

Wizt -

ARRZHEREARBEEELE

39. XD A Z M B R T 2)

BT

Convertible
note
Share equity Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
TRREE
BREE B R RAGE - ON:A RiEE B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FAET FET
359,042 - 53,194 285,975 (11,188) 687,023
— - = - (41,383) (41,383)
274,516 - - - - 274,516
(1,857) - - - - (1,857)
- - - 19,279 - 19,279
- - - (11,227) 11,227 -
- 45,500 - - - 45,500
- (7,597) - - - (7,597)
631,701 37,903 53,194 294,027 (41,344) 975,481
- - - - (120,946) (120,946)
355,379 — - - - 355,379
(2,330 - - - - (2,330)
78,771 (36,599) - - - 42,172
- - - 9,875 - 9,875
- - - (42,776) 42,776 -
- 6,039 - - - 6,039
1,063,521 7,343 53,194 261,126 (119,514) 1,265,670

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £,
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Financial Summary
M ERSEE

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 March
BESHMHLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
FET FAET FET FAET FET
Turnover EL 348,081 286,916 223,756 156,940 192,489
Profit (loss) before taxation 7 Al Al (E512) 69,999 (40,670) (1,138) (2,752) 35,118
Taxation (charge) credit HIE(FZ)FTA (4,939) 5,908 5,833 211 (4,032)
Profit (loss) for the year KRR EEIERFE
attributable to owners of s 4l (B 1)
the Company 65,060 (34,762) 4,695 (2,541) 31,086
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 March
M3A31H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 702,005 662,136 1,003,979 1,389,502 1,919,181
Total liabilities BEE (73,643) (53,900) (206,100) (266,408)  (356,536)
Equity attributable to KRB RRIE(S s
owners of the Company 628,362 608,236 797,879 1,123,094 1,562,645

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report



Summary of Properties
EZ

At 81 March 2015

R2015F3 831 A
A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REW
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable/site
area
Purpose (sq.ft.) Lease term
BagE/
ERER
Location 3k Jitk=3 (EAR) BAFH
1. Ground Floor BBET Commercial 580 Long
No.148 Johnston Road s S RH
Wanchai 148551 T
Hong Kong
2. Ground Floor and Cockloft B8 iR Commercial 1,232 Long
No.13 Matheson Street M E 1355 [HES &8
Causeway Bay T REE
Hong Kong
3. Ground Floor — 5th Floors &5 i Commercial/ 4,440 Long
No.15 Matheson Street MiEEF155% Residential RH
Causeway Bay HWTESE CEYEE=
Hong Kong
4. Ground Floor ik 3 Commercial 472 Long
No.6 Cannon Road =RA 65 [HES =
Causeway Bay R
Hong Kong
5. Two parcels of land at an WIgEA T Mz Industrial 1,805,534 Medium
industrial site located at the fERFEANTIAMMT I i
South of Hengtang Harbour, the ‘% % [& 4 B $E 4R 22 B8 LA -
West of Dongliang Road, Zhili EIEAURE B A TR

Town, Wuxing District, Huzhou BRNEEZEZEY
City, Zhejiang Province of the

People’s Republic of China with

a total of twelve building blocks

being built

KREXEEERAT 2014/15 £, 147
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEBE (&)

At 31 March 2015
R20156 %331 A

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. B{EHEREY%E

FOR SALE
Approximate
gross site area Stage of
Location Purpose (sq.ft.) Lease term completion
LA 3t B [ 7
i A& (FFR) HAFH ZTRER

1. Nos. 14-16 Inverness Road Residential 8,442 Medium Under
Kowloon Tong £ fE  development
Kowloon BERAp
Hong Kong
BRBNENEE
JEXIB T B 14-16 5%

2. Nos. 18-20 Inverness Road Residential 7,060 Medium Under
Kowloon Tong E=E HH]  development
Kowloon EREAp
Hong Kong
BENENER

EXE 78 18-20 %%

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2014/15 Annual Report
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